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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRWOMAN

Dear valued shareholders,

The year 2018 was an exceptional year
for the pangasius industry with a total
export value of 2.26 billion USD, an
increase of 26.5% from the previous
yvaear. We celebrated our first "trillion
dong” net profit after tax milestone
with 1,442 billion YND for 2018. On
behalf of Vinh Hoan, | am delighted to
present our results and would like to
sincerely thank our shareholders, who
have trusted and accompanied us along
this spectacular journey.

Vinh Hoan's values — innovation and
differantiation = are core (o our
development. As we reach new heights
in 2018, we continue to create a
sustainable future by continuously
improving our farming and production
management aysteams,

At the beginning of 2019, we initiated a
high-tech pangasius hatchery project
in Vinh Hoa islet, An Giang province to
address the biggest challenge in our
industry — fingerlings — in order to
improve farming performance and to
create a platform for continuous
technological innovation, Our team is
studying farming processes of various
aquatic species, both domestically and
abroad, for potential adaptation to our
supply chain,

At the end of 2078, we establishad Vinh
Phuoc Food Co., Ltd. in Chau Thanh
district, Dang Thap province. It acquired
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a fish processing facility with a total industrial area of 17 hectares and a total
farming area of 70 hectares. This facility is strategically located in an area with
convenient logistics infrastructure, abundant labor resources, and a sizable fish
raw material supply. Vinh Phuoc and our existing facilities are located in the same
river stream, allowing us to further improve economies of scale in our raw
materials supply management from the Tien River and the Hau River of Mekong
Delta, with the patential to further expand production capacity and open up to new
opportunities from other related industries,

All Vinh Hoan factories, whether new or old, are regularly maintained and upgraded
with machinery and equipment. We continuously improve our production lines to
streamline human resource, maximize raw material recovery, and optimize
production processes.

in the spirit of innovation and differentiation, we encourage every employee to
contribute suggestions and ideas in their everyday activities so we can build an
open and innovative organizational culture, We are not afraid to step out of our
comfort zone. We are always cognizant of the rapidly changing industry landscape
to continuously evolve and differentiate in every step of the production process.

in 2019 and the coming years, we will continue to improve ourselves and the
industry’s mindset to promote the reputation of Vietnamese pangasius along with
Vinh Hoan brand — a delicious, high-quality product. We strive to be the seafood of
choice for consumers by crafting a narrative of scientific research and continuous
improvement by Vietnamese aquaculture professionals; and by adapting ta market
demand for healthy, nutritious, and convenient food solutions.

People at Vinh Hoan are committed to constantly listening, learning, acting
professionally, and being devoted to the distributors, supermarkets, and
restaurants who place their confidence in selecting Vinh Hoan as their trusted
partner and vendor.

On behalf of everyone at Vinh Hoan, | am grateful for your continued support.
Thanks to our long-term development strategy, Vinh Hoan has a solid foundation to
achieve new heights in our future development.

sincerely,
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INNOVATION IS THE FUTURE
OF AQUACULTURE

2%

of food fish will come
from aquaculture by 2030
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1.2

COMPANY INTRODUCTION
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1.2.1 OUR MISSION - OUR VISION - OUR CORE WALUES
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1.2.2 COMPANY HISTORY

Vinh Hoan was established in 1997 in Dong Thap province, specializing in the farming
and processing of frozen pangasius products. Vinh Hoan is the leader in farming,
production, and export of the pangasius industry. The Company has achieved the
following milestones aver its history of more than 20 yeaars:

1997 1

1998 {

1999 '

2000 '

2005 *

2007 *

o6
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Mdm. Truong Thi Le Khanh established Vinh Hoan as a private enterprise.

¥inh Hoan converted from private enterprise to a limited company.

Vinh Hoan established the first seafood workshop located at Cao Lanh
city, Dong Thap province commeanced operation.

Workshop 1 was accredited with EU code for export to European markets
(DL.147),

Workshop 1 was accredited with 1S0 9001:2000: 1S0 14001:2004;
BRC:Z005 and IFS version 4 cerfifications.

= Egfablished Vinh Hoan [USA) Inc. in California, USA:

= Eztablished Vinh Hoan Feed 1 JSC:

* Commenced operation of the Warkshop 2 (DL.B1);

= Vinh Hoan listed on the Ha Chi Minh Stock Exchange.

Commenced aperation of the Workshop 3 (DL.500).
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2009 * - Vinh Hoan's farms were accredited with AQUAGAP certification;

2010 *

2012°

& * Vinh Hoan's laboratory was accredited with ISO/IEC 17025:2005 certification,

a inh Hoan becamea the No. 1 Vietnam exporter by export value according
to the Vietnam Association of Seafood Exporters and Praducers (VASEP);

= Farms were accredited with Global GAP certification;
= Quality control systems were accradited with IS0 22000 certification,

= Vinh Hoan and Mdm. Truong Thi Le Khanh were awarded the Labor Medal
Class il by the Prasident of the Socialist Republic of Viatnam according
to Decision No. 150/Q0-CTN dated January 28, 2011;

» Received the Best Retall Product prize In Seafood Prik d'Elite at the
European Seafood Exhibition in Brussels, Belgium;

= Vinh Hoan's farms and processing facilities were accredited with Best
Aguaculture Practice (BAP) 2-star.

= inh Hoan was awarded the Labor Medal Class Il by the President of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam according to Decision No, 1261/ QD-CTN dated
August 21, 2012;

* \inh Hoan was the first pangasius company to be accredited with Aquaculture
Stewardship Council (ASC) certification for sustainable farming.

« Vinh Hoan's barramundl farms were accredited with Global GAP;

* Commenced construction of Vinh Hoan's collagen and gelatin facility
with a total capacity of 2,000 tons of finished products per year.

» Vinh Hoan was the only seafood company named in the Top 50 Best
Listed Companies by Forbes Vietnam:

» Mamed as one of the Top 50 Best Performing Companies in Vietnam by
Investment Review magazine;

= Divested Vinh Hoan 1 Feed JSC.

o7
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=The collagen and gelatin facility commenced operation and was
accredited with IS0 9001, 1S0 14001, GMP-WHO, and Halaf certifications;

= Vinh Hoan became the first pangasius company in the world 1o be
accredited with BAP 4-star for the entire chain of custody from hatchery,
feed, farming to processing;

= Hecelved priority In customs clearance processes in accordance with
Decision Mo, 2669/0B-TCHO dated September 14, 2015 signed by the
Diractor General of General Department of Customs;

= Vinh Hoan continuad to'ba naméd in Top 50 Bast Listed Companies in
Vietnam by Forbes Vietnam,

s [ncreased loreign ownership limit to 100% to attract strategic investors;

= ¥inh Hoan continued 1o be named in Top 50 Best Listed Companies in
Vietnam by Forbes Vietnam;

= Appointed Ms. Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam [formerly Sales and Marketing
Director) as CED:

= \finh Hoan was awarded the Labor Medal Class | by the President of the
Soclalist Republic of Vietnam In accordance with Oecision No.
224B/00-CTN dated September 20, 2016;

= Mdm. Truong Thi Le Khanh was awarded the Labor Medal Class Il by the
President of the Sociallst Republic of Vietnam according to Decision No.
2262/QB-CTN dated Octaber 25, 2016;

= CED Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam and Project Director Huynh Duc Trung were
awarded the Labor Medal Class lil by the President of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam according to Decision No. 2053/QD-CTN dated
September 20, 2016 and Decision No. 186 dated January 18, 2018,
respactively,



2017 *

«V¥inh Hoan purchased 100% stake of Thanh Binh Dong Thap JSC to
expand the Company's production capacity;

= Ohalrwaman Mdm. Truong Thi Le Khanh was named one ol the Top 50
Mast |nfluential Women In Vietnam in 2017 by Forbes Vietnam;

= Yinh Hoan continued o be named in the Top 50 Best Listed Companies
in Vietnam in 2017 by Forbes Vietnam:

= Named as one of the Top 50 Best Parforming Companies in Vietnam by
Investment Review magazine;

= Named as one of the Top 35 Leading Seafood Enterpriags in Human
Resources Tranlng and Development (2011-2016) by VASEFR;

= Mam. Truong Thi Le Khanh was appointed as the Chairperson of VASEP'S
Freshwater Fish Committes;

= Vinh Hoan was named as Outstanding Agricultural Production Model by
the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development.

s The U5 Department of Commerce announced the final results of the 13th
admimstrative review of anti-dumping duty on frozen pangasius fillets
from Vietnam, in which Vinh Hoan continues (0 enjoy 2ero duty rate;

= The LS. Departmant of Agriculture (USDA) published a greliminary finding
that pangasius fllets produced in Vietnam follow safety and production
standards squivalent to thosa in the U.S.;

= Vinh Hoan“s Onigirl Rice Ball wes a finalistin the Seafood Excellence Glopal
Awards compstition at the Seafood Expo Global in Brussais, Balgium;

= Contributed 100% capital (VND 300 billion) to establish Vinh Phuoc Food
Co, Lid, with processing capacity of fillets reaching 150 tons of raw
materialf day,

« Signed a strategic cooperation agrecmant with Pharmag for large scale
deployment of ALPFHA JECT Panga 2 vaccines;

« Chairwoman Mdm. Truang Thi La Khanh attended Firat Fresh 20, a summit
of global fresh fonds leaders organized by Alibaba;

= Named as one of the Top 50 Best Performing Companies in Vietnam by
Investment Review magazine;

= Vinh Hoan was named by the Ministry of Industry and Trade in the list of
“Mos! Reputabie Exportars of 20187

=Vinh Hosn was named "The Enterprise lor Farmers" by the Ministry of
Agricuiture and Rural Development and awarded the Golden Hice Flower prize;

# Thie Vietnamesa Chamber of Commerce and Industry of Can Tho namad
Vinh Hoan as “The Sustainable Enterprise of the Mekong Delta™ and “The
Exemplary Enterprise of the Mekong Delta 2018.° Chairwbman Mdm.
Truong Thi Le Khanh was also honored with "The Entrapreneur for the
Livaelirood of the Mekong Defta Communities” and “The Exsmplory
Entrepreneur of the Mekong Dalta 2018":

= Vinh Hoan was named by VASEP as one of the Top 15 Qutstanding Sealood
Exparters of 2018,

09
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1.2.3 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS LINES REGISTERED

* |Inland aquaculture;
* Processing and preserving aquatic products;

* Trading of raw agricultural products and preprocessing materials in the aguatic
products and aguatic feed industries;

» Trading of aquatic products and related husbandry products used in producing and
processing of aquatic products;

* Trading of chemicals used in producing and processing aguatic products;

* Trading of machines, equipment and supplies used in producing and processing
agquatic products and aquatic feeds;

= Producing fish meal;
* Producing oil and fat from animals and plants;
= Extracting and producing gelatin and hydrolyzed collagen;

» Exporting and importing of gelatin, hydrolyzed collagen, and pharmaceutical
ingredients; importing chemicals and materials used in producing gelatin,
hydrolyzed collagen, cosmetics and supplements,

1.2.4 PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

CONSUMERS, ALONG WITH EVER-CHANGING CULINARY TRENDS, ARE THE
MOTIVATION AND ENDLESS INSPIRATION TO VINH HOAN FOR NEW PRODUCTS
DEVELOPMENT

Consumers, along with ever-changing culinary trends, are the motivation and endless
inspiration for food processing companies like a Vinh Hoan to enrich its product
portfolio, and ta increase consumer with a demand diversified portfolio.

We understand that modern consumers lack time to cook, yet demand delicious,
unigue, nutritious and convenient products. They are prepared to pay more for natural
and environmentally friendly foads with clear ingredient labeling for natural.

Therefore, Vinh Hoan constantly creates delicious, nutritious, and canveniant seafood
products, helping consumers to crease memorable culinary experiences with friends
and families.

Besides, the Company is constantly striving to be a supplier of high quality seafood
and sustainable aquaculture. We focus on responsible farming and production with
strict farming standards, animal welfare and transparent traceability under the
standards of BAP 4* and ASC covering fingerlings, feed, raw material fish to final
praduction. Pangasius is considered one of the safest farmed fish species globally,
and its farming and production process is subject to stringent environmental, social
and governance standards certified by international third-party certification bodies.
Our R&D's understanding of consumer needs helped new product development. Vinh
Hoan's value-added products have won various awards: "Seafood Harmony was the
winner of the Seafood Prix d'Elite Health and Nutrition at Seafood Expo Global,
Brussels 2009; "Provocake"” was the winner of the Seafood Prix d’'Elite Health and
Mutrition at Seafood Expo Global, Brussels 2011; "Pangasius Onigiri Rice Balls® was a
finalist of Seafood Excellent Awards, Brussels 2018; and "Fish Bites" was awarded
“Innovation of the Year” prize by the Australian supermarket Woolworths.

10
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Vinh Hoan's product list for 2018 includes 3 main product groups: food, functional
foods, and by-products:

* Food group: including fish fillet, Ready-to-Cook products, Ready-to-Eat products
= Functional food group: including collagen and gelatin

= By-products: products made from the utilization of the remaining raw materials of fish
fillet processing.

The main product of Vinh Hoan is sustainable and environmentally friendly
pangasius fillets. [t has become a popular white fish globally thanks to the following
characteristics:

= Suitable for aquaculture and
2asy 10 process:

- Mative species of the
Mekarng River

- Easy reproduction
- High disease resistance
- Low feed conversion ratio
- Can be sustainably farmed
- Ease of filleting

* Suitable for families:

- White meat, naturally firm
texture, mild taste, suitable
for consumers of all ages

- Ease of cooking, versatile
applications for all kinds of
cuisines

- Competitive pricing

n
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Ready-to-Cook products

Formed breaded pangasius
"Hand-made" breaded pangasius
Marinated pangasius

Pangasius skewers

-
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Ready-to-Eat products

Kabayaki pangasius: grilled pangasius with Kabayaki sauce
Onigiri rice balls filled with kabayaki pangasius
Fish skin snacks

Collagen & gelatin

Vinh Hoan Is the only company in Vietnam to apply high-tech in researching and
developing collagen and gelatin from pangasius skin successfully, in order to optimize
the efficiency of fish skin from fillet processing. Collagen is gaining popularity in the
functional food and cosmetics industry. Gelatin is an essential ingredient in the
pharmaceuticals and confectionery production. Collagen and gelatin products from
Vinh Hoan Callagen Co., Ltd have high purity, solubility, permeability, and compatibility
with natural body collagen. It is easily absorbed by human body, homogeneous is ASC,
GMP-WHO, HACCPE, HALAL, IS0 9001, 1SO 14000 certified, and is chosen by major
manufacturers worldwide.

13
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Vinh Hoan continues to
optimize the recovery
value through the
processing of fishmeal,
fish oil, and other
by-products. Fish oil and
fishmeal are used in the
production of animal feed
and refined fish oil can
also be used in food
processing for human
consumption. Fish fins
and fish air bladders are
widely used in Asian
dishes.

Export sales in 2018 are divided into product groups

=& Pangasius fillet products: |
USD 330 million

-4 Barramundi fillet products: | .
UsD 7 million

BT%

® Yalue-ndded progucts:

LIS & midllign
# Collagen & gelatin: |
UsD 11 million

B » By produats:

USD 378 million

s 23 mitlion |

14

W ENH HOW N CORPORAT ION
-l Hapoet 3005 e



g
=
m .
B
&
Ll
i
=
o
X
I




= ENNOAAT RO B

1.2.5 BUSINESS PREMISES IM 2018

Vinh Hoan constantly develops its production system to maximize long-term capacity
and productivity.

Domestic sites:

Headquarters at Cao Lanh city, Dong Thap province with three pangasius and
value-added products factories.

Ho Chi Minh city = Branch is in charge of sales and investor relations,

Vinh Hoan Collagen One Member Co., Ltd. produces collagen and gelatin at Cao
Lanh city, Dong Thap province.

Thanh Binh Dong Thap One Member Co,, Ltd, has two pangasius factories and one
factary for processing fishmeal and fish oil at Thanh Binh district, Dong Thap
province.

Fish farms, concentrated mainly in Dong Thap, Tien Giang, An Giang and Ben Tre
provinces. In 2018, the Company completed land procedures, and started
construction and farming 219 hectares at Tan Hung district, Long An province;
Vinh Hoan Food 2 Co., Ltd. had two rice mills at Lap Vo district, Dong Thap province.
In October 2018, the Company completed transferring assets of Vinh Hoan 2 Food
Co., Ltd. to a foreign partner. In early 2019, the Company also completed the
dissolution procedure of Vinh Hoan 2.

In September 2018, Vinh Phuoc Food Co., Ltd, was established to acquire the
pangasius factory in Chau Thanh district, Dong Thap province and a farming area
in Ben Tre;

16
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1.2.7 EXPORT MARKETS

PANGASIUS EXPORT MARKETS OF VINH HODAN

The structure of export markets of ¥inh Hoan had no major changes,

with the U5, China, the U.K. and Canada continuing to be the four

largest markets. However, markets perfarm differently:

» Expanding markets: the U.5,, China, Belgium, Japan, the Netherlands,
Spain, Switrerland, etc,, and

e Shrinking markets: the LLK., Canada and Australia due to insufficient
supply caused by the shortage of raw matenal.

In 2018, a serious shortage of fingerings and raw material fish led to low

inventory level, the Company adjusted sales activities by prioritizing

strategic markets and certain high-end mid-end costumes with

suitable selling prices.

PANGASIUS EXPORT MARKETS OF THE INDUSTRY

The export market structure of Vietnamese pangasius industry had
no major changes, with the U.5. China, Latin America and ASEAN
countries remaining as the main markets. However, in 2018, the U.5.
and ASEAN markets showed significant growth while the Latin
American markets retreated, mainly due to a sharp increase in raw
material prices which led to selective expaort strategies.

VINH HOAN'S MARKET SHARE IN SOME MAJOR MARKETS

In the U.S., Vinh Hoan continued to be the leader accounting for 50%
market share of Vietnamese pangasius.

In China, Vinh Hoan continued to be the third largest supplier, with its
market share increasing shightly from 8% to 9%, and focusing primarily
on the high-end segment.
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COMPANY STRUCTURE -
ORGANIZATION CHART -
MANAGEMENT TEAM

1.3.1 COMPAMNY STRUCTURE

VINH HOAN 2
FOOD CO,, LTD. (1)
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100%
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Vinh Hoan 2 Food Co., Ltd. was established in accordance with Business
Registration Certificate No. 1401420853 dated July 27'h 2011 by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Thap province.

» Charter capital: VND 100,000,000,000; of which VND 99,300,000,000
(equivalent to 99,3%) was contributed by Vinh Hoan Carporation.

« Principal business: grains milling, rice polishing, trading and
importing/exporting of rice.

* |n Dctober 2018, Vinh Hoan Corporation sold substantially all assets of
Vinh Hoan 2 Food Co., Ltd. to a foreign investor, In early 2019, Vinh Hoan 2
Food Co., Ltd. was disolved.

FTEEETFFFFFEFFTTFFYTTTTETEEEETEEE TR AR R A

Vinh Hoan 4 One Member Co., Ltd. was established in accordance with

Business Registration Certificate No. 140171196 dated April 5" 2012 by the

Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Thap pravince.

« Charter capital: VND 50,000,000,000; Vinh Hoan Corporation has yet
contributed in this company.

= Principal business: processing and preserving seafood and other fishery
products.

* |[nvestment for construction and operation of Yinh Hoan 4 One Member
Co., Lid. has not commenced.

e e e e e e e B e e O e e T O B e . L e

Vinh Hoan Collagen One Member Co., Ltd. was established in accordance with
Business Registration Certificate No. 1401587429 dated on December 2nd, 2011
by the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Thap province,

s Charter capital; YND 100,000,000,000; fully contributed by Vinh Hoan Corporation.

* Principal business: extracting and manufacturing of hydrolyzed collagen and
gelatin.

Thanh Binh Dong Thap One Member Co., Ltd. was acquired by Vinh Hoan
Corporation in early 2017,

* Business Registration Certificate No. 1402054046 by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Dong Thap province,

* Charter capital as of December 3151, 2018: VND 233,143, 345,033; fully held by
Vinh Hoan Corporation.

* Principal business: Aguaculture, processing, preserving and trading of fish
and other fishery products.

Vinh Phuoe Food Co., Ltd. was established by Vinh Hoan Corporation in
Seplember 2018,

= Business Registration Certificate No. 1402103399 by the Department of
Ptanning and Investment of Dong Thap province.

* Charter capital as of December 315!, 2018: VND 300.000,000,000; fully held
by Vinh Hoan Corporation.

* Principal business: Aguaculture, processing, preserving and trading of fish
and other fishery products.
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1.3.2 ORGANIZATION CHART

= Yinh Hoan is structured as a corporation with Shareholders, Supervisory Board,
Board of Directors, Bpard of Management including CEQ, and functional
directors (sales, finance, production, quality, and sustainability) and the
directors of subsidiaries and affiliates.

* Direct reporting to the directors are managers, heads of departments. The
departments are structured by operating functions from farming, processing to
sales.

= The subsidiaries are managed by the directors, reparting directly to CEQ. The
affiliates, mainly in charge of sales and market develapment activities align with
sales strategy of the parent company, report to Sales Director.

IRECTOR OF
PRODUCTION DIRECTOR QYUALITY DIRECTOR SUSTAINABILITY

Human Resources| * : Supplies Quality Control Farming
Dept. ¢ | Procurement Dept. Dept. Certification Dept,
IT Dept. | Rawmaterials Laboratory &
¢ | Procurement Dept. Testing Dept. Farming RAD Dept.
Production | | Processing
Planning Dept. | Workshops
ME&E Dept - - Storages
Construction
Biiaid - Farms
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EEHERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

YIHH HOAN CORPORATION

CHIEF FIMANCIAL DIRECTOR OF BUSIHESS
OFFICER AR DT on HELATIOMS

Accounting Dept. Sales Dept, Project Management
Team
I
Finance Dept. Marketing Dapt.
!
Investar Relations
! Dept.

e i ol - B e - - - -

k|
!
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1.3.3 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR OFFICE TERM 2017 — 2021

The annual General Assembly of Shareholders in 2017 had elected the Board of
Directors for affice term 2017 = 20217 as follows

= pdm. Truong Thi Le Khanh Chairwoman of tha Board

» Ms. Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam Member of the Board
s M5, Truong Tuyet Hoa Member of the Board
* Ms. Nauyen Thi Kim Dac Member of the Board
= Mr. Vo Phu Duc Member of the Board

There is no change in the BoD's personnel in 2018.

-
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INTRODUCTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MDM. TRUONG THI LE KHANH

Chairwoman of the Board
Ownership af YHC shares
[as al March 22, 2019) 42'33%

= Yaar of birth: 1961
= Qualifications: Bachelor of Economics

= She has served as the Chairwoman of
the BoD since 2007,

in 1997 she founded and led Vinh Hoan from a small
processing facility to one of the largest companies in
farming and processing pangasius.

She is known as one of the leading business women in
the Vietnamese pangasius industry, who takes a great
part in pioneering for the sustainability of this
industry.

She is the Chairwoman of the Board, focusing on the
strategic planning activities and improving the
management of the Company.

Mdm. Truong Thi Le Khanh has been granted multiple
honorable and prestigious awards as followings:

2018

s Entrepreneur for the Mekong Delta community
« Excellent Entrepreneur Award in Mekong Delta 2018

Vietnam Chamber of Commesrce and industry

« Top 50 Most Influential Vietnamese Women 2018
Forbes (Vegtnarm)

2017

= Second Class Labor Medal, for excellent business
result in 2011-2015, contributing to the building of
gocialism and national protection

The Presigent of the Sociaiist Repubdic of Velmnam

« Top 50 Most Influential Vietnamese Wamen 2017
- Forbes fVisingm)

s Chairwoman af the Freshwater Fish Committee

Vistnam Axgneiation of Seafand Exportors and Procesaarsg

2016

= Top 20 Most Influential Vietnamese Women 2016

Forbes (Yetnam)
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MDM. TRUONG THI LE KHANH

Chairwoman of the Board

Dwnership of VHC shares 0
{as of March 22, 2019) 42 - 3346

= Year of birth: 1261

= Qualifications: Bachelor of Economics
* She has served as the Chairwoman of

the BoD since 2007,
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2015

* Top 50 Best Business Leaders with Outstanding
Business Achievemenis and Leadership

The Busingss Review

2014

= Representative Vietnamese Businesswoman with
the Golden Rose cup

vietnam Chamber of Commerce and nousiry

= Top 50 Best Business Leaders with Dutstanding
Business Achievements and Leadership

- The Business REyiew

2013

= Successful Intellectual Businesswoman of Saigon 2013

- Wigtnam Union of Science and Technology Assoclations

» Top 10 Most Successful Vietnamese Businesswomen

= Farbes (Vietnam)

2011

= Third Class Labor Medal, for having excellent business
result in 2005-2009, contributing to the building of
socialism and national protection,

= The President of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam




MS. NGUYEN NGO VI TAM
Board Member

Dwnership of VHT shares o
{as of March 22, 2018} 0-12/6

» Year of birth: 1979
= Qualifications:
Bachelor of Laws; MBA
» Years with Vinh Hoan: 16 years

= She has been a BoD member
since 2007

= | ROVAT 0N

Ms. Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam joined Vinh Hoan as a sales
person in 2003, She was promoted to Sales Manager
in 2006 and Vice Sales Director in 2008, This title was
renamed as Sales and Marketing Director in 2014,
Since May 23, 2016, Ms, Nguyan Ngao Vi Tam has been
appointed as a General Director of the Company.

Ms. Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam has led Vinh Hoan's sales and
marketing team for over 10 years and under her
leadership, the export turnover has recorded a
fivefold increase. in the process of development and
expansion of production capacity, she played an
important role in market development and branding
activities to ensure corresponding sales growth.

She also successfully sets up an international sales
team that speaks multiple languages and is
experienced in various distribution channels, She is
also repsonsible for managing the establishments
and operations of sales offices in the United States,
Singapore and China and product development
division,

She also handles the anti-dumping case in the LLS,,
investor relations, and advises the Board of Directors
on strategies for long-term development and plays a
key role in the implementation of these strategies.
She was awarded with many merits and prizes as
below:

2018

» Marit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2018

- Chairman gf Dong Theg Pmvincial feople s Commiitee

2017

» Third Class Labar Medal

The President of the Spcialist MepUOic ar Vietmam
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2016

* Top 40 under 40 year old fisheries leaders

= pkrarsh

2012

» Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2012

Chairrnan of Dong Thap Prowvincial People’s Commities

2011

» Merit of Qutstanding Achievements in the National
Economy Development

HE. HEU\‘EH NEﬂ vl TAH - The Prime Minister af the Sociafist Republic of Vietnam
Board Member

Dwnership of VHC shares u .1 2% 2007

jas of March 232, 20713)

) v Mert of Qutstanding Achievements in Aguacultura
* Year of birth: 1979 and Seafood Business

« Dualifications: Minister of Aoricuiture and Rursl Devsloprmern
Bachelor of Laws: MBA
* Years with Vinh Hoan: 16 years

* She has been a BoD member
since 2007
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MS. TRUONG TUYET HOA
Board Member

Ownership of VHC shares o 02%
L

{as of March 22, 3019)

= Year of birth: 1976
» Qualifications:
Bachelor of Economics; MBA
= Years with Vinh Hoan: 22 years

= She has been a BoD member
since 2015

= | ROVAT 0N

Ms. Truong Tuyet Hoa was one of first employees of
Vinh Hoan since its inception. She was among the
first key salespersons and has led the sales team to
thrive in the development history of the Company.
Ms. Truong Tuyet Hoa was appointed as Sales
Manager in 2009 before being promoted to Sales
Director In 2097, She plays an Important role in
planning and implementation of business plans and
sales strategies of the Company as well as effective
management of exports, logistics, and after-sale
SEIVICES.

She was awarded with many merits and prizes as
below:

2018

» Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2018

Chairrman of Dong Thap Provincial Pecple’s Commilfon

2017

= Merit of Excellent Performance in the Establishment
and Development of Vinh Hoan Corporation on the
Company's 200 Anniversary

Charman of Dong Thap Provincrdd Peopie's Comnulies

2012

s perit of Excallent Achievemneants on Tasks 2012

Chairman of Dang Thap Prmincial Peopie’s Coummilfes

2007

= pMerit of Outstanding Achievements in Aquaculture
and Seafood Business

= Miriigter of Agricufture and Rural Development
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MS. NGUYEN THI KIM DAOD

Board Member

Owniarship of VHC shares 0 D g%

jas of March 22, 2019)
s Year of birth: 1979
* Qualifications: Bachelor of Accounting

« Years with Vinh Hoan: 16 years

» She has been a BaD member
gince march 10, 2016
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Ms. Mguyen Thi Kim Dao served as the Chief
Accountant for 10 years before being appointed as
the CFO in 2014,

She manages accounting and financial procedures
of ¥inh Hoan to ensure strict compliance, accuracy
and truthfulness and optimize the capital efficiency
for Vinh Hoan and its subsidiaries,

Ms. Dao also took part in the early phase of tackling
the anti-dumping case in the U.5.. In addition, she
also advises the Board of Directors on many
important financial strategies and cost management
policies for the Company.

She was awarded with the below merits:

2018

« Merit of Excellant Achievements on Tasks 2018

- Chairman of Dong Thap Provincial People’s Commlites

2014

s Merit of Outstanding Achievements in the National
Economy Development

The Prime Mirdster of the Socialist Repubdic of Vietram

2012

= Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2012

Chawrman af Dong Thap Provincial People's Commiites

2007

» Merit of Qutstanding Achievements in Agquaculture
and Seafood Business

Mirgsier of Agrcwture and Rural Develoomentd
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MR. VO PHU DUC

Board Member

Ownership of VHC shares 1 ag%
-

{as af March 22, 2019)

= Year of birth: 1976

= Qualifications:
Construction Engineer

= Years with Vinh Hoan: 16 years

= He has been a BoD member
since 2012

= | ROVAT 0N

Mr. Vo Phu Duc started working at Vinh Hoan in 2003
and has been constantly managing many projects to
expand the production capacity of the Company;
from fillet processing to food, rice and collagen,
gelatin manufacturing.

In the period of 2007 — 2013, he was Director Vinh
Hoan Feed, The Company's revenue increased
rapidly and contributed greatly to the corporation.
After the sale of Vinh Hoan Feed, Mr. Vo Phu Duc was
nominated as the Director of Vinh Hoan Collagen on
August 01, 2013. Under his management, the
pperation at Vinh Hoan Collagen commenced on
schedule; meanwhile, the technical standards of the
finished products and production efficiency were
achieved. He advises the Board of Directors in
strategies related to technology development and
innovations,

He was awarded with below merits:

2018

= Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2018

Chadrman of Dong Thag Pravincial Peoghe's Commities

2014

= Merit of Outstanding Achievements in the National
Econaomy Development

- The Prime Mimigter of the Socraist Repuinhc of Vietham

N
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' SUBCOMMITTEES

On Januray 06, 2017, the Board of Directors decided to form two
subcommittees directly reporting to the Board of Directars, including:

* Procuremeant subcommittee; and

* Human Resources — Policies — Compensation subcommittee,

Functions — Missions

PROCUREMENT SUBCOMMITTEE:

= Counsel, suggest and suppart the work of the Board of Directors in
formulating and implementing the plans and policies on the purchaseof
goods and sarvices,

= Optimize the performance of the purchase of goods and services for
manufacturing:

= Periodic supplier audits;
- Manitor of the procurement process to ensure no loss;

- Review the effectiveness of the procurement process to ensure
timely supply for production;

- Review and recommend to add or replace procurement personnel,

= Other specific functions and tasks as appointed by the BoD. at the
specific time.

HUMAN RESOURCES — POLICIES — COMPENSATION SUBCOMMITTEE:

* Formulate the policies of salary, bonuses and benefits for the
Company's employes;

* Formulate the annual salary regime based on the scale of production
and the business results;

s Annually evaluate personnel policies, salary and bonus structure,
benefits for the Company's management team, and suggest necessary
changes in front of the General Assembly of Shareholders at the
subsequent meeting;

= Other specific functions/missions as appointed by the BoD. related to
salary — bonuses — benefits for the employees of the Company.
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Personnel of subcommittees (as of December 31, 2018)

PROCUREMENT SUBCOMMITTEE:

[ [] Full Hame Position Title

1 Truong Thi Le Khanh Chairwoman of BoD Head of subcommities
2  Nguyen Mgo Vi Tam General Director Deputy Head
3 Mguyen Thi Kim Dao Finance Director Member
4  HoThanh Hue Production Directar Member
5 Vo Phu Duc Director of Vinh Hoan Collagen Member

One Member Ca., Ltd.

&  Phan Thi Bich Lien Director of Thanh Binh Dong Thap Member
One Member Co., Ltd.

Changes in the personnel of the subcommittee in 2018: Ms. Huynh Thi Tuyet Nga is
no longer the member of the Procurement subcommittee,

SUBCOMMITTEE OF HUMAN RESOURCES — POLICIES — COMPENSATION

Ho Full Name Position Title

1 Truang Thi Le Khanh Chairwoman of BaD Head of subcommittes
2 Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam General Birector Deputy Head
3  Mguyen Thi Kim Dao Finance Director Member
4 Ho Thanh Hue Production Director Member
5 Vo Phiu Duc Director of Vinh Hoan Collagen Membear

One Member Co., Ltd.

s

Hao Thi Mhiu Nguyet Vinh Hoan's Human Resource Member

Changes in the personnel of the subcommittee in 2018: Ms. Huynh Thi Tuyet Nga is no
longer the member of the subcommittee of Human Resources = Policies = Compensation.
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1.3.4 THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management ("BoM") include General Director who has overall
responsibility for managing the business and Directors who are in charge of
different functions and subsidiaries.

Changes in BoM personnel in 2018: None

GENERAL DIRECTOR

SALES DIRECTOR

FINANCE DIRECTOR

PRODUCTION DIRECTOR

QUALITY DIRECTOR

i rﬂ‘-‘x --\.'.—'-- '-T""'“ -.'- e l-"""'l '.-r-- e
Lt | s
1jJ_! l_‘_n-.i "L- r‘l u.-cl |:_ -‘.'.-': J'l. I hl_rl..l-.d”_ll
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INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BoM

) O

HS NGUYEN NGO VITAM

General Director

Plegse refer fo Section [.3..3, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MS. TRUONG TUYET HOA

Sales Director

Please refer to Section [.3.3. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MS. NGUYEN THI KIM DAO

Finance Director

Plegse refer to Section .3.3, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. VO PHU DUC

Director of Vinh Hoan Collagen One Member Co., Ltd,

Plegse refer to Section L33, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Ms. Ho Thanh Hue joined Vinh Hoan as a Quality
Agsurance Department’s staff, then was gradually
appointed in the position of production
management including Vice Quality Assurance
Manager in 2006 and Factory Vice Manager in 2007,
From 2007-2009 she was appainted as Assisstant
Production Director before being promoted to
Production Director on Mar 01, 2014. She was
responsible for managing all production activities of
the Company including construction projects,
maintenance, planning, purchasing materials and
organizing daily activities of the fish processing
workshops. She has played an important rale in
implementing the capacity expansion strategy in
recent years to keep up with the sales growth and
meeting the ever-increasing demand for product
guality and productivity improvement. In 2018, Ms.
Hue represented Vinh Hoan to manage the research
“"Humane Way to Dispatch Fish to Ensure Animal
Welfare and Filet Product Quality”, part of the
“Developing Premium Pangasius® Fillets” project
under the “Pangasius as Mational Product” project

MS. HO THANH HUE implemented by Ministry of Agriculture and Rural
Development.

Production Director She has received a number of prizes and awards, as
follows:

Ownership of VHC shares 0.04%
-

(@5 of March 22, 2018)

2018

= Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2018

» Year of birth: 1982
= Qualifications: Environmental Engineer
= Years with Vinh Hoan; 15 years

Chairman of Peogle’s Commitien af Dang Thap Provinoe

2014

= Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2014

- Lharman of People’s Commuiies of ong Thap Frovince

2012

# perit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2012

Chairrman aof People's Commiliteo of Dong Thap Provifoe
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MS. LE THI DIEU THI

Quality Director

Dwnership of VHC shares 0 01%
L]

(a5 of March 22, 2019)

= Year of birth: 1975

= Qualifications: Enginear of Food
Technology, Bachelor of Business
Administration

* Years with Vinh Hoan: 19 years

= | ROVAT 0N

Ms. Le Thi Dieu Thi joined Vinh Hoan in 2000 as a quality
controller. After that, she was gradually appointed into
managing positions regarding quality control including:
Secretary of the IS0 Committes in 2003; Team leader of
the HACCP team cum Secretary of the IS0 Committes in
2004, Vice Manager of Quality Assurance Department in
2006, Manager of Quality Assurance Department in
2008, and Quality Director on December 25, 2017,

From 2008 - 2017, she was in charge of the entire Quality
Assurance Department and its staff, implementing
training on skills and mindset for all production staff;
monitoring and maintaining effective  guality
assurance. As a result, the Company continuously has
achieved good results in audits carried out by
customers, third parties and authorities, fostering trust
and great reputation for the Company.

Besides, she always focuses on improving and leading
her teammates to be profassional, active, enthusiastic
and creative in production via frequent training courses
to update knowledge and skills: thus, being able to
provide customers with products which meet the
highest standards of quality and food safety, helping to
increase competitiveness of the Company against other
companies in the industry.

With her acumen and effort in her work, she has
received a number of prizes and awards, as follows:

2017

» Merit of Excellent Performance in the Establishment
and Development of Vinh Hoan Corparation on the
Company's 200 Anniversary

Cieirman of Peopié’s Dommities of Dong THhap prownncs

2012

= Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2012

Chatrman of Peapie’s Committes of Dong Thap province
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2007

« Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2007

Direcior of Figheries Deparmmen|

2006

=First prize in 60'" Anniversary of Vietnam's
Commercial Industry

Directir of Department of Commerce and Tourism
of Dong Thap province

= Successful in creating and operating managing system
which meet standards 150 3001, 150 14001, BRC & IF5

Director of Vinh Hoan Co., LId

MS. LE THI DIEU THI

Quality Director

Dwnership of VHC shares u‘n‘l%

(a5 of March 22, 2019)

» Yaar of birth: 1975

» Qualifications: Engineer of Food
Technology, Bachelor of Business
Administration

* Years with Vinh Hoan: 19 years

40
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MS. DANG THI THUONG

Director of Sustainability

OUwnership of VYHC sharies D-u 1%

{as of March 22, 2019)

= Year of birth: 1987
= Qualifications: Master of Biology
= Years with Vinh Hoan: 9 years

= | ROVAT 0N

Ms. Dang Thi Thuong started working for Vinh Hoan
in 2010, She was responsible for farm certification
activities before being appointed as Director of
Aguaculture and Director of Sustainability in 2014
and 2017, respectively she led multiple successful
international aguaculture certification programs
for the Company, specifically ASC and BAP
contributing to the development of revenue and
promotion of Yinh Hoan's brand over the YEars. As
the Company positioned itself as a |eading
company in global sustainable aguaculture, Ms.
Thuong continues to play a vital role in the
Company’'s strategy heading towards 100% farms
being certified by 2020. She also represents the
Campany in the research and development projects
in the field of domestic and international
aguaculture,

She has received the below award:

2017

= Merit of Excellent Performance in the Establishment
and Development of Vinh Hoan Corparation on the
Company's 20" Anniversary

- Chatnman of Feapie’s Commities ol Dong Thap pRRince

41
ViNH HOAN CORPORATION
BN Ld M . 1 .



o EN MO AT R0 B

Mr. Huynh Duc Trung is one of first employees of
Vinh Hoan since its establishment. He played a key
role in the construction and production
management of the very first factories. He was
appointed as Deputy Managing Directar in charge of
production and aquaculture for 13 years before
being appointed as Project Director (later renamed
as Director of Business Relations on Jan 01, 2017)
who is responsible for land documentation for new
farming projects, establishment and management
of processes and activities related to the
gnvironment, labor union, security, safety of the
workshops and labor safety in the Company.

He has received a number of prizes and awards, as
follows:

2016

»Third Class Labor Medal, for having excellent

MR. HUYNH DUC TRUNG

Director of Business Relations business rasult in 2011-2015, contributing to the
building of socialism and national protection
L¥ ki f VHE sh THid Presicent of (e Saclalist Repl i Wikl
WNETrsSNig o L. shares 0.02% hiet Presicent of fhe Socialist Repubile of Vigtnam

(as of March 22, 2019

-‘rear of birth: 1963 20]2

= Qualifications: Engineer of Food
Processing

* Years with Vinh Hoan: 19 years

= Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2012

Charrman of Peopla’s Commities of Dang Thap prownce

2011

= Merit of Outstanding Achievements in the National
Economy Development

- Prime Minister of the Socialist Repubiic of Vietnam

2007

= iledal for the Agriculture and Rural Development

- Minister of Agriculiure and fRural Development
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MS. PHAN THI BICH LIEN

Director of Thanh Binh Dong Thap
One Member Ltd., Co.

i hip of WHC st i
s of Marenz2, 2010, 0-003%

= Year of birth: 1976

= Qualifications: Engineer of Seafood
Farming

= Years with Vinh Hoan: 19 years

= | ROVAT 0N

Ms. Phan Thi Bich Lien joined Vinh Hoan in April 2000
as a quality controller, With outstanding performance,
she was appointed to multiple positions, including the
Manager of Quality Assurance, Director of Freezing
Department, Director of Warkshop 1 and Director of
Production in 2007. She was later appointed to
Director of Freezing Department of Warkshop 3, and
Raw Material Purchasing Manager in June 2006. She
was trusted and appointed as Director of Thanh Binh
Dong Thap One Member Co., Ltd. when Vinh Hoan
acquired this company on Dec 25, 2017, Ms. Lien plays
an important rofle in  capacity expansion and
productivity in production chain, greatly contributing
to meeting production goal of the Company.

She has received the following awards:

2017

» Merit of Excellent Performance in the Establishment
and Development of Vinh Hoan Corparation on the
Company's 20t Anniversary

- Chalrman of People’s Commitiee af Dong Thap province

2012

« Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2012

Chalrman of Poopie s Commiiiee of Dang Thap provinoe

2007

» Merit of Excellent Achievements in Seafood Farming
and Trading

Minlgrer of Aghiculture amd Reral Devsiondimen|
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MS. LE THI SAU

Director of Vinh Phuoc Food
One Member Co., Ltd.

Ownership of VHE shares 1]
(a5 af March 22, 2019} 0'01‘6

= Year of birth: 1966
* Qualifications: Engineer of Food
Chemistry, Bachelor of Economics

» Years with Vinh Hoan: 19 years

» She was appointed as Diretor of
Vinh Phuoc Food One Member Co.,
Ltd. since 4'h quarter 2018.
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Ms. Le Thi Sau has many years of experience in
production management at Vinh Hoan and its
subsidiaries. Since the 4'" quarter of 2018, she was
appointed as Director of the newly established
subsidiary — Vinh Phuot Food One Member Co., Lid,,
responsible for strategic planning, managing
investment, production activities, and establishing
stable operation far this new subsidiary.

She has received many awards as follows:

2017

* Merit of Excelient Performance in the Establishment
and Development of Vinh Hoan Carporation on the
Company's 200 Anniversary

Chairman of People's Comttes of Dong Thap province

2011

» Merit of Excellent Achievements on Tasks 2011

Chalrman of Peopie’s Cormmities of Dang Thiad province

2007

» Medal for the Agriculture and Rural Development

Mimigmer ol Agriculture amd Rural Developomant

2005

« Mearit of Excellent Achievemeants - reported in the 370
Assembly of Patriotic Emulation of Dong Thap
province from 2001-2005

= Chairman of People’s Commities of Dong Thap province






T TR0

46

1.3.5 THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Annual Sharenolders Mesling
2018 elpcted the Supen/ison Board for
the office term 2017-2021 a5 Tollows:

= Ms, Mguyen Thi Cam Van
Head of the-Superviaary Board
= Mr. Nguyen Quang Vinh
Mambar of thesyparyisory 8oand
= ME. Hguyen Thi Thai Ly
- Membet of the Supeivisary Board

Thera ig no change in parsannel o1 the
Supervisory Bodgrd in 2018

W HOWN CORPORATION

-

THE SUPERVISORY BOARD FOR
THE OFFICE TERM 2017-2021

MS NGUYEN THI CAM VAN

Head of the Supervisory Board

Ownership of VHC shares
{as of March 22, 2019} U%

= Yoar of birth: 1986
s Qualifications:
- Bachelor of Economics
- Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)

With many years of experience in the
field of auditing and financial
consultancy at KPMG Co., Ltd. and
experience in the field of financial and
investment management at Refico
Real Estate Development Group, Ms.
Van plays an important role in
strategic planning and action plans far
the Supervisory Board in 2018,
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MR. NGUYEN QUANG VINH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Dwinerghip of VHC shares L)
{as.of March 22, 2019) DA

o Year of birth; 1879
« Qualifications: Bachelor of Economics

» Mr Vinh is currently the Farming Director
of Vinh Hoan Vinh Hoan Cao., Ltd.

Mr. Vinh has more than 10 years of
experience in the field of production
planning at a number of subsidiaries of
Vinh Hoan Corporation and over 3 years
of experience in the farming field at the
Company. With his extensive knowledge
of production and farming, he plays an
impaortant part in contributing technical
insights to ensure thorough and feasible
control of the Company,

MS. NGUYEN THI THAI LY

Member of the Supervisory Board

Ownership of VHC shares )
[as of March 22, 2013) 0/.;

= Year of birth; 1988

» Qualifications:
- Bachelor of Accounting - Auditing;
- Passed CRA fevel 2,

= Ms. Ly is currently authorized 1o

publish information at Vinh Hoan
Corporation.

Joined Vinh Hoan in 2014, she has
held the fallowing positions: Member
of the Investor Relations Department,
guthornized person (o publish
infarmation at the Company. She is
actively involved In risk analysis in
departments and divisions within the
Company.
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PANGASIUS BREEDING:
FROM TRADITION TO INNOVATION
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1.4.1 MAIN TARGETS

= |n 2017 and 2018, Vinh Hoan has completed most of the expansion activities in
farming area and processing capacity. In 2019, the Company will concentrate in
attracting more resources and continue expanding on existing farming areas and
plants, It is expected that the raw material supply will be more abundant after two
years of shortage, the Company will focus on effective management and operation
of fish farming to ensure competitiveness and suitability with the best sales
strategy.

* Regarding sales activities: the selling price in 2019 will be softened compared to
that in 2018, which will be an apportunity for Vinh Hoan ta recover the lost markets
in 2018, continuing growth in China and expanding in new markets in Latin America
and the Middle East. The Company expects to increase sales in 2019 when raw
material supply is more stable and production capacity also increases. After two
years of increasing pangasius selling price, Vinh Hoan does not expect to increase
profit margin in 2019, the Company sets a profit target based on its ability to
increase sales and market demand in 2019,

* Regarding marke!l development and marketing, the Company implements Winh
Hoan brand positioning strategy along with taking the lead in industry-wide
promaotional programs to protect the image of pangasius and to improve the sales
in European markets. These activities will create more demand for pangasius
products in global markets.

*» The Company implements a breeding project along with other improvement
projects to quickly offer efficiency, differentiation and to cement the rale of Vinh
Hoan in sustainable aguaculture industry, cantributing to the improvement of the
pangasius image.

» Regarding internal management, the Company plans to perfect the internal
reporting and auditing system, increasing the transparency and efficiency in every
aspects of production and business activities.
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1.4.2 2019 Plan

Far 2019, the Company sets the sales target as follows;

REVENUE AND PROFIT PLAN

Linit: WND Blitan

2017 2018 2019 2019

Actual Actual Plan Growth Rate

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE 8,151 8,271 10,047 8.4%
* Frozen seafood, fishmeal & fish oil 7583 8,486 9152

* Fish feed an ABB 422

* Rice 0 14 M

* Collagen and Gelatin 157 Z2B3 473
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AFTER TAX 605 1,442 1,255 -13%
TO THE COMPANY

* Frozen seafood, fishmeal & fish oll 624 1,346 1,057

* Fish feed 12 25 18

* Rice (18} (12} N A

* Collagen and Gelatin [13) B3 180
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

With the aim of continuing the expansion aof farming and production capacity;
ensuring a high quality supply of raw materials, competitive production costs and
premium pangasius products; meeting the standards of international certification
bodies and ever-increasing reguirements from the exporting market, Vinh Hoan
places its focus on the construction of new farm areas and expansion of processing
capacity at Vinh Phuoc and Vinh Hoan Collagen factories.

PLANNED CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN 2019

VND 800 BILLION

Capacity expansion al Vinh + Automatic packing system

Phuoc by constructing the - « and an additional new |
second processing plant, a | . gelatin processing line to |
new cold store and 8 new : - increase the capacity of
fishmeal and fish oil plant ! . Vinh Hoan Collagen to 3,500 |
] . tons of finished products |

annually é

VND 477 billion

VND 115 billion

Upgrading farms and . . Upgrading and purchasing !
expanding farming areas ;  new machineries for Vinh
; . Hoan and Thanh Binh plants

VND 120 billion VND 88 billion

At the beginning of 2019, to mark the successful cooperation with a business partner
experienced in aquaculture breeding, Vinh Hoan Fish Hatchery Co., Ltd. was
established. The Company plans to invest approximately VND 22.5 billion.
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1.4.3 SWOT ANALYSIS

STRENGTHS

Global leader in sustainable farming and
processing of pangasius under
international standards, Vinh Hoan's brand
is synonymous with product quality,
operational efficiency, and safety;

Our vertically-integrated platform enjoys
growing market share due to its
best-in-class sustainability, efficiency, and
reputation;

Loyal and long-standing relationship with
customers giobally:

Dedicated, professional and skilled
workforce in farming and processing;
Talented, committed and experienced
managemeant team and multinational and
multicultural sales organization;

Global market insights and in-depth local
knowledge, which translates into tailored
advertising and branding strategies;
Strong financial position, cash-rich with
ample funds for future development; low
leverage and strong ability to attract debt
funding for development;

Qualified to supply directly to supermarket
and restaurant chains;

Free trade advantage and reputation in the
U.S, market,

RPORATION

FOVE -

WEAKNESSES

Lack of investments in smart
technologies in a rapidly
advancing information age;

Prices are nol compelitive in
low-end markels;

Products are replaceable by
similar products manufactured
by our competitors;
Recruitment drives for workers
at new facilities need
improvemeant.




OPPORTUNITIES

Growing middie class population and
changing dietary pattern drive demand
for seafood proteins and market growth
oppartunities;

Agquaculture proteins replace capture
fisheries as the main seafood source for
human consumption, thus creating
demand for both seafood farming and
related upstream industries;

Advantages from free trade agreements,
such as the the Comprehensive and
Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific
Partnership (CPTPP), EU-Vietnam Frae
Trade Agreement (EVFTA), of which
Vietnam is a signatory;

Increasing consumer awareness in food
safety, product origin, and sustainability;
Pangasius is competitively priced against
other fish species creating additional
demand without any direct or pertinent
substitutes,

| ROYAT IO

THREATS

Increasing production costs
requirea continuous efficicency
improvements;

Increasing competition with
ather industries for labor supply
requires improved recruitment
campaigns;

Environment  and climate
CONCErNS require innovation;
Technical and trade barriers to
import  require managemaent
attention.
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BUSINESS OPERATION
IN 2018

2.0 Report of the Board af Dhrectors

i
2

A Financial informat lan

A Capital expenditures

LF

Shareholder struciure and changes in owners' equity
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2.1

REPORT OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

in 2018, Vinh Hoan continued to develop with business results exceeding
the expectations shareholder. The results affirmed the Company's
strategies and are reflection of the tremendous efforts of management
and employees. During the year, the Board of Director continued to fulfill
the responsibilities of setting directions and supervising operation for
the success of the Company. This report presents analysis of 2018
results, sets targets for 2019, and identifies strategies far the Company
inthe future,

2.1.1 OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

Vinh Hoan continued to be the leader of pangasius aguaculture globally
in 2018, Vinh Hoan's brands are built on superior quality and service
with the advantage of a large, intergrated and efficient production
system. In addition, Vinh Hoan has an experienced management team
who has been together for mare than 15 years and a highly responsible
and committed workforce, The Company continued to maintain and
promote itself inchallenging markets, such as those with trade technical
barriers.

2.1.2 TRADE RELATIONS BETWEEN COUNTRIES - "CATALYSTS"
FOR MARKET DEVELOPMENT

Operating in the export business, the development of Vinh Hoan in
particular and the pangasius industry in general will inevitably be
affected by the free trade issues. Free trade is the catalyst that
creates challenges and opportunities for Vinh Hoan as well as for all
pangasius exporters,

- ¥
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UNITED STATES

The LS. market has a highly developed legal system specifically catered for its
protectionist policy. After years of “anti-dumping” orders that inhibit competition, the
Farm Bill invented a new inspection program by the United States Department of
Agriculture ("USDA"} for the pangasius industry in 2018, Initial audits declared Vietnam's
fish inspection systems to be preliminarily equivalent to LLS. standards, demonstrating
stringency of the existing regulations and guality control systems. This outcome
provided further assurance to U.S. customers, driving growth in the U.S. and increasing
selling prices globally.

Vinh Hoan has an early mover advantage in the U.5. market, with established brand
prestige, market reputation and a loyal customer base. The Company will continue to
promote free trade, transform technical barriers into differentiation and branding
opportunities, and expand sales and profits.

EUROPE - EVFTA AND BREXIT

if the trade agreement between Vietnam and EU - EVFTA is rectified in 2019,
pangasius will have an opportunity to increase its competitiveness against poliock,
especially in the segment of processing "fish finger” products when the import tax of
pangasius were lowered from 5.5% to 0% according to the 3-year plan. In addition,
the context of "no deal" Brexit can also reduce import tax for pangasius to the UK.
down to 0%. While the tariff agreements can help pangasius increase
competitiveness and potentially market share in Europe, the industry still has to
make great efforts in communication and marketing programs to rebuild this market
which used to account for 30%. Vinh Hoan, with quality, reputation and certification
advantages will continue to invest in supplying for supermarkets in parallel with
marketing and new product development activities. The goal of Vinh Hoan is to make
Europe its top 3 biggest markets, besides the U.S, and China.

US-CHINA TRADE TENSION

Trade tension between the L.5. and China creates certain opportunities for
Vietnam's pangasius since the U.5. is China's largest tilapia importer. Although
pangasius cannot substitute tilapia directly, the risk of increasing import tariffs for
tilapia in the U.5, and the trend of U.5. consumers staying away from China's
products have indrectly helped increasing the consumption of pangasius. Besides,
China has increased quality control, combated environment pallution and trade
frauds especially in 2018 also increase pangasius demand in China to replace illegal
importation across borders.,
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FACTORY

Vinh Hoan's facilities are always maintained and repaired to ensure hygiene and
efficiency. The Company invests heavily to improve safety, productivity and
efficiency by using modern freezing equipment, renovating ceiling, lights, electric,
water systems and cold storage. For the Company repaired and renovated the cold
system at Vinh Phuoc after acquisition in 201B. For Thanh Binh, the Company
completed the expansion to Workshop 2 and installed maore freezing equipment to
increase productivity for 2019. In the future, Vinh Hoan aims to continue to apply
machinery and equipment solutions to reduce labor as well as increase productivity,
shorten processing time to increase product gquality and computerize praduction
management to optimize efficiency.

FARMING

Az a leading enterprise of Vietnam aguaculture industry, with the vision of leading
the world sustainable aguaculture, Vinh Hoan has always prioritized farming
innovation activities for many years. These activities focus on addressing the
challenges of the pangasius and aquaculture industry in general including
fingerlings quality, water source guality, fish heaith, drug residues and effects on the
environment.

= In 2018, the Company completed research under the Premium Pangasius Project of
the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development.

= After nearly 5 years of trial, on August 22, 2018, Vinh Hoan signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Pharmag to deploy ALPHA JECT Panga 2 vaccines for
large-scale pangasius that protect fish from diseases caused by Edwardsiella
lctaluri and Aeromonas Hydrophila bacteria, The widespread use of vaccines is an
impaortant milestone for the Vietnamese pangasius industry. As proven in the
salmon industry, effective use of vaccines will help reduce or replace the use of
antibiotics, ensure food safety, thereby improve sustainability and increase profit
for farmers, Vaccination is also a better solution from the perspective of animal
welfare,

= High-tech fingerlings project: Vinh Hoan launched a project to produce pangasius
fingerlings using multiple new scientific applications, aiming to improve the quality
of fingerlings in a sustainable way without raising production cost, Early 2019
marked the official collaboration of the Company and an experienced partner in
aguaculture fingerlings via the establishment of Vinh Hoan Fish Hatchery Co,, Ltd..
Phase 1 of the project will be implemented on the existing land area in Vinh Hoa, An
Giang province, then it will expand to an area of more than 200 hectares. The
direction of this project is to solve the challenges of the pangasius hatchery
industry by strict environment control, targeted procedures, appropriate feed
sources in the early stages, modern fingerlings transportation equipment and
vaccination to maintain the health of fingerlings before moving to commercial fish
farming.
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In 2018, Vinh Hoan will continue to carry out science and technology improvement to
create transformation, increase differentiations and solidify the Company's position.
Below are summaries of key projects and directions:

» Continue to carry out the Company's research for the Premium Pangasius Project,
focusing on improving feed farmulas, nutritional supplements according to market
demands; improving the process of raising fingerlings and commercial fish as well as
the processing; and introduction of high quality pangasius products as a premise to
build a national brand. Vinh Hoan believes that the success of this project will
contribute positively to improve pangasius image in consumers all over the world and
stimulate demand 50 the pangasius industry can continue 1o develop.

* Quickly implement phase 1 of the fingerlings project after completing paperworks
for high-tech application enterprises, and launch phase 2 to expand project scale.
After expanding processing and farming capacity, in the coming years, fingerlings
will be Vinh Hoan's key factor for competitiveness in quality and production
efficiency. Full control over fingerlings will help the Company solve many
technical challenges in the market, especially antibiotic residues and drugs
control. In the future, the Company wants to set up research cooperation to
genetically select fish.

= For improvements in the application of feeding and harvesting machinery, the
Company will continue trials to create cumulative progess into major changes in
farming efficiency.

INTERMAL PROCESS IMPROVEMENT

The annual goals of the management always include improvement on internal
processes. In order to achieve business goals and bring value to customers, Vinh
Hoan team focuses on the compliance and progression of business procedures to
mitigate risks and improve efficiency. In addition, the Company increasingly invests
in training programs and developing human resources, which are one of main factors
that make Vinh Hoan & success. The programs that have been and will be
implemented including:

* To comply with Decree 05/2019/ND-CP on Internal Audit effective from April 1, 2019,
in 2018, Vinh Hoan built an Internal Audit Department on the basis of the previous
Internal contral department. Accordingly, the Internal Audit Department has
completed standardization of main business procedures and created enterprise
risk manual to conduct audit plans in 2019,

=Create a Vinh Hoan cultural manual and conduct intermnal training and
communication in 2019, Innovation is also one of the core values of Vinh Hoan
culture, Vinh Hoan's members are always the pioneers in innovation to maximize
the value of pangasius.

= With the aim of attracting more workers for new factories and continuing to reduce
turnover, the Company will carry out training activities focusing on improving
relationship with workers and employees, improving of their quality of life and
increase employees' benefits.
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2.1.4 PRODUCTS IN 2018

THE FROZEN PANGASIUS FILLET PRODUCTS

Frozen pangasius fillet products - the main product group, accounted for
approximately 75% of the Company's consolidated revenue and grew 18% compared
to 2017, reaching VND 7,032 billion. Along with the traditional distribution channel via
importers and distributors, the Company continues to develop direct distribution to
restaurants chains and supermarkets, However, due to the increasing price trend in
2018, the Company reallocated customers and markels, especially in Europe. With a
network of more than 300 customers, Vinh Hoan's products have been sold in 34
countries in 2018, Mutinational supermarkets where Vinh Hoan products are
presented include Walmart, Casino, COOP, Aldi and Woolworths. In addition to food
gsafety and product quality, Vinh Hoan's pangasius Is famous due to the
distinguished abilty to supply internationally certified sustainable products with the
Aguaculture Stewardship Council certification ("ASC") and Best Aguaculture
Practices 4-star ("BAP 4-star”).
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VALUE-ADDED PRODUCTS

Value-added products is a strategic product category in the Company's plan for a
sustainable development of revenue and increase of profit margins. Vinh Hoan has
successfully developed and sold breaded and marinated pangasius products in the
European, American and Asian markets. However, in 2018, when the price was high,
some value-added projects had to be suspended because these products needed
mare time for price adjustments. In 2019, the Company will have a better opportunity
to increase the value-added products sales with the goal of up to 10% of future sales

revenue.
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COLLAGEN AMND GELATIM

Collagen and gelatin sales began in these high-tech products and optimized the value
of fish skin, a by-product from the pangasius fillet production. The company supply
100% of the raw materials in collagen and gelatin production, a unique model in
Vietnam and in the world, providing high quality and stable source of ingredients for
food, beverage, cosmetics and functional foods. This project is considered a success
by the BoD, due to its high tech proeduction system, profitable business model, R&D,
market development since 2015, The 2018 revenue of this product category reached
nearty VND 300 billion and contributed to overall profitability.
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BY-PRODUCTS

By-products include fishmeal and fish oil supply to animal feed industry and a
number af aother by-products such as stomachs, air-bladders, and fish fins. Revenue
of this product categaory in 2018 reached nearly VND 1,250 billion,

OTHER PRODLLCTS

Other products include aqua feed, barramundi and some other raw materials.

by By
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2018 - A SUCCESSFUL YEAR FOR VIETNAMESE PANGASIUS INDUSTRY

in 2018, Vietnamese seafood export reached a new peak with the export
turnover of USD &.8 billion, increased by 6% compared to 2017. The main
seafood products are shrimp, pangasius and other seafood products.
However, 2018 was considered unfavorable for the shrimp industry when
the export value reached only USD 3.6 billion, decreased by 8%. The growth
of seafood export was due to the contribution of pangasius, and other
seafood products. The overall turnover of the pangasius in 2018 reached
USD 2.26 billion, up by 26.5%. This was the highest value in history, which
raised the proportion of the pangasius export from 21% to 26% of total
seafood export. This outcome was achieved thanks to the combination of
various factors below:

From the beginning of 2017, the price of pangasius began to rise because
of the fingerlings shortage caused by unfavorable weather and the
influence from growing demand from markets such as China, In 2018,
although not being influenced by the cold months like the previous year,
the total harvest volume of pangasius increased by 15% and raw material
price continued to rise, reaching the record high in the last months of
2018, This movement was accumulated from the shortage of 2017, but
also refiected the popularity of pangasius in global markets through the
steady growth in the 3 main markets - the U.5., China, and Europe.

in addition to the increase of export volume, pangasius selling price has
increased significantly. The U.5. market drives growth in the pangasius
industry, the largest pangasius importer as the first year of full
enforcement of the U.S, In 2018, Vietnam's including Vinh Hoan's four
factories passed the on-site audit of the USDA. Therefore, on September
19th, 2018, USDA announced the Proposed Rule on equivalency for the
imported pangasius from Vietnam. Achievement on passing the USDA
equivalency and the trade war between the LS. and China have created
a good opportunity for the growth of pangasius export to the U.S. with a
growth of 60%. Vietnamese pangasius has further confirmed its
reputation in quality and trade prestige, which will generate maore
demand from other markets.
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Pangasius export to EU markets has plummeted continuously, especially in 2017
after the industry faced attacks from negative media, However, in 2018 this market
grew aver 20% due to contribution from the Netherlands, Belgium, Germany and the
LLK.. ¥inh Hoan maintained its leading role in this industry with the advantage of
sustainability, working closely with relevant government autharities and Vietnam
Association of Seafood Exporters and Producers (“VASEP") to improve the image of
Vietnamese pangasius in Europe. This market requires premium quality products
which desarves a long-term and proper investment plan. The result in 2018 served as
a proof and motivation for the pangasius industry to continue with marketing
strategies to recover this market, which used to be the largest pangasius imparter
over 10 years ago with a total import value of more than USD 500 million. Vinh Hoan,
together with VASEPR, will continue to make proposals to the Ministry of Agriculture
and Rural Development and ather relevant authorities to form a marketing fund for
Vietnamese pangasius for promotional activities with the aim of restoring the image
of Vietnamese pangasius worldwide.

Pangasius exported to China expanded 30% in 2018. Industry focus shifted from
guantitative growth to product quality, positively impacting the overall sustainability
of the market, E-commerce channels, such as Alibaba and JD.com, began direct
pangasius distribution. Demand from restaurants, hotels, and consumers continued
to increase as awareness and reputation of pangasius improved, However, food
safety and quality control remain an issue for the border trade.

Main markets for pangasius export

Source: VASEP
Linit: millfon USD

Market 2017 2018 Up/down (%)
United States 344 320 549,452 bo.5
China & Hong kong 410,875 528,657 28.7
EU 203,023 243,958 20.2
Asean 143171 202,652 a1.5
Mexico 104,252 99,408 -4.6
Brazil 104,688 86,807 A
Colombia 54,564 62,591 14.7
UAE 23,070 48,102 108.5
Other countries 400,006 439,860 10.0
Total industry 1,788,039 2,261,487 26.5%
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FORECASTS OF PANGASIUS INDUSTRY IN 2019
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FORECASTS OF PANGASIUS INDUSTRY IN 2018

Based on some reports of the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development
{"MARD") and VASEP, we provide forecasts of pangasius industry in 2019 as follows:

= According to VASEP, legal documents, decrees, circulars, and regulations an
pangasius agquaculture have gradually been perfected in the last 5 years, which
helped provide stability to the production and quality of raw material, and maintain
the balance in the pangasius farming, processing and export. According to the data
from MARD, the pangasius farming volumea in the Mekong Delta has reached a stable
level in the last 5 years with the largest farming area of 6 thousand hectares and the
highest volume of 1.25 million tons of raw material, reaching an average growth rate
of 3% annually, The sustainable growth of pangasius in the past & years indicated the
successful development of the industry, which had fimited fluctuations.

The shortage of fingerlings supply has continued at the beginning of 2019 which may
cause a shortage of raw material supply at the end of this year. However, MARD
expects that the total production of pangasius in 2019 will increase slightly by 6%.
This growth rate is reasonable to ensure the adeguate production and reasonabile
pricing level of pangasius to supply to the markets with strong growth but facing
shortage of supply in the last two years, and to ensure profits for pangasius farmers
and companies.

In 2018 with ongoing trade tension globally, the Vietnamese seafood industry in
general and the pangasius industry in particular can increase its export volume to
the U.5S. replacing Chinese tilapia which accounts for 40% of the total imported fish
into the U.S.. If the Europe-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement (EVFTA) is officially
ratified, it will positively impact the industry. In the next two years, it is forecasted
that China will continue to be a potential import country for Vietnamese pangasius
due to its high demand and diversified product portfolio at different price ranges.
The advantage geographical will benefit Vietnamese pangasius companies.
Additionally, the development of e-commerce in China as a distribution channeal will
help increase the demand.

Quality will be a decisive factor for the success of Vietnamese pangasius industry in
the global markets. With complex food safety regulations and standards throughout
the supply chain, pangasius farmers and processors are required to comply with
stringent regulations and standards in order to establish long-term and prestigious
reputation.

Pangasius branding: In 2019, Vinh Hoan and VASEP will continue to launch marketing
programs of Vietnamese pangasius globally, and simultaneously, we will propose and
advocate for a marketing fund similar to the Norwegian seafood industry. This
strateging, if implemented successfully, will have a significant impact in Europe. This
marketing fund will be the premises for a sustainable growth in the coming years to
bring European markets back to its leading role. VASEP expects pangasius export to
Europe will increase at 20% in 2079 with a turnover of over USD 300 million.
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2.2.2 REMARKABLE EVENTS OF VINH HOAN IN 2018

19/03/2018

The U.S Department of Trade officially released the final result of the 1310
administrative review of antidumping tax on frozen fish fillets from Vietnam. Vinh
Hoan continues to enjoy duty rate of 0.

Vinh Hoan's new product, Onigiri Rice Ball, entered the Final Round in the Competition
of Seafood Excellence Global Awards held at Seafood Expo Global 2018, Brusseals.

The Chairwoman of Vinh Hoan, Mrs. Truong Thi Le Khanh, attended The First Fresh 20
(F20) which was a summit among CEQs from leading fresh food companies supplying
to Alibaba, one of the largest e-commerce company in the world.

For the 5th time, Vinh Hoan is honored in the Top 50 Most Effective Companies in
Vietnam selected by Investement Bridge Magazine and Thien Viet Securities
Carporation,

This is the 5" consecutive year Vinh Hoan is honored in "The Top 50 Best Listed
Companies in Vietnam" by Forbes Magazine.

A strategic Agreement was signed by Vinh Hoan and Pharmagq to deploy the injection
of vaccine ALPHA JECT Panga 2 to catfish a large scale.

N
WikH HOAN CORPORATION

 AnAUAT Hepars 2405



o INNOWAT RO B =

72

Vinh Hoan contributed VND 300 billion to establishment of Vinh Phueoc Food
Company Co., Ltd. to acquire existing production facilities and farms to increase its
processing capacity up to 20% per year within the next two years.

During the year, the Company continued to expand its fish farming area:

* From September 2017, the Company obtained the approval of the People’s
Committee of Long An Province on a Catfish Farming Project covering 219 ha
located at Vinh Lai Communes and Vinh Chau A Commune (Tan Hung District,
Long An Province), In 2018, the Company completed all procedures concerning
the land, started the construction and began to commercialize farmed fish in this
strategic farming area.

= The Company bought 3 fish farms with a total area of approximately 70 hectares,
increasing the Company’s total fish farming area to almost to approximately 600
hectares.

The U.S Department of Agriculture declared a preliminary equivalency for pangasius
imported from Vietnam under the Farm Bil.

* The Commerce and Industry Chamber of Vietnam, Can Tho Branch honored Vinh Hoan
in the “Sustainable Development Companies in the Mekong Delta”, Businesses For
Mekong Delta Communies”, and “The Company of Mekong Delta in 2018"

* Mrs, Truong Thi Le Khanh, the Chairwoman of Vinh Hoan - was honored as “Typical
Businesswoman of the Mekong Delta in 2018"

31/10/2018
The Company completed the transfer of assets of a subsidiary- Vinh Hoan 2 Food
Company Ltd.
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The Company was granted the title "The Company for Farmers" and was awarded the
Prize “ Bong Lua Vang"® by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Developmant.

The Year 2018 marked a brilliantly successful year for the Project of High-Tech,
producing Collagen and Gelatin from fish skin. This was the first year the Project
made & significant achievement, producing at the most capacity, increasing revenue
by more than 100%, and creating positive industry reputation.

The Company continued organizing many activities to promote a sharing culture
and strong bonds among its employees:

= Organized domestic and international trips for nearly 2,000 employees with
total expenditure of more than 8 billion dongs.

* Organized the Program “Thank Our Parents" for the parents of the employees,
which was held for the first time and brought many positive feelings and
affections to the participants , fostering a sense of comradery.

* The year 2018 was the 3'd consecutive year the Company carried out the Lights
of Dream Program to fund to fund the eye surgeries for nearly 1,000 patients, a
meaningful program for local communities.

* The Company provided support to families facing hardship and granted
schaolarships to low-income students. The funds for these activities was taken
from the Internal Fund of the Company.

* Other Programs celebrating the Lunar New Year as well as Scholarships for the
for the underpreviledged.

73
VINH HOAN CORPORATION

NI il Wepart 207158



- N TIC N -

LIKE THE 'GREEN REVOLUTION' BEFORE IT, THE
'BLUE REVOLUTION' IN AQUACULTURE PROMISES
RAPIDLY INCREASED PRODUCTIVITY THROUGH
TECHNOLOGY- DRIVEN INTENSIFICATION OF
AQUACULTURE ANIMAL AND PLANT PRODUCTION.

(Costa-Pierce 2002; The Economist 2003)
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2018 posed many challenges including the shortage of raw materials
and trade barriers in export markets. By promoting its existing
strengths with the support from customers and business partners,
Winh Hoan has overcome such difficult situations, turning challenges
to opportunities, creating a milestone in the Company's development
for more than 20 years.

The Board of Directors submit this report to shareholders with
business results in 20718 as follows:

Unit: Billion ¥ND

Consolidated revenue 81752 9407 15%

Consolidated net profit after tax GOS 1,444 138%

Unit: Billion WND

o
2
2

Net cansolidated revenue 8271 9300

1,442

Consolidated net profit after tax
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Vinh Hoan and the industry at large faced raw material shortage and increasing raw
material prices at the end of 2017, Customers were concerned about product
avallability due to uncertainty introduced by the Farm Bill. In 2018, Vinh Hoan turned
challenges into opportunities and reported outstanding profits. The Company
attribute its performance to economies of scale, production efficiency, customer
network, and maturing and professionalising industry standards which benefit the
entire industry.

Warmer weather improved raw material supply in 2018, The Company scaled up its
operation by acquiring a processing facility, three farming areas, and compieted
construction of a hatchery in the 220 ha farm in Long An province. Farm Bill
equivalency provided continued growth opportunities in the U.5,, while demonstrating
superior quality and food safety compliance.

REVENUE

The consolidated net revenue in 2018 increased by 14%. Pangasius volume and price
increased. The Company made its best efforts to meet the increasing demands from
global markets, especially the U.S. and China. However, the value-addded products
have not yet shown any remarkable growth during 2018 because the increasing
selling price has negative impact on some value-added products programs which
require longer time for price adjustment. The revenue of collagen and gelatin
products continues to increase strongly, reaching 283 billion VND, up by 1.8 times
compared to 2017, The revenue of these products proved Vinh Hoan’s success in a
new business segment. As for other seafood products, the Company did not make
any strategies to boost their revenue due to the focus on the expansion in pangasius
farming and processing.

Regarding the revenue structure based on the types of business activities, in general,
there is no significant change compared feed trading revenue increased. Revenue of
services rendered was mainly from export service.
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Following is the revenues of products and business types in the past years:
Linit: Billion WND

Revenue Shareof Revenue Shareof Revenue Percentage
2018 total 2007 total 2016 of the Net

revenye TEETILIE Revaenue
in2018 4 in 2017 38 in 2016 ()

Sales of finished 7,231 78.0% 6,252 76,7% 5829 79.B%
products

Sales of by 1,102 11.9% 1,281 15.7% 1,043 14,3%
products

Sales of 864 9.3% 565 6.9% 406 5.6%
merchandises

Sales of raw 53 0.6% 47 0. 6% 21 0.3%
materials

Sale of services 21 0.2% [ 0.1% 4 0.1%
Total 9,271 8151 7,303

Regards to total revenue breakdown by each subsidiary, the Company recorded
strong growth at Vinh Hoan Collagen as followings:

Linit: Billion VND

Revanua Revenua

Company 2018 2017 Growth (%)
Parent Company 7748 5619 3B8%
 Vinh Hoan 2 14 10 40%
| Vinh Hoan Collagen 283 167 80%
Thanh Binh Dong Thap 1,864 690 170%
Vinh Phuoc a5 M/A
7
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MARKET

Vinh Hoan reached increased sales by expanding capacity in 2018, Its export
volume value decreased in Q1 due to raw material scarcity. For the remainder of the
year, the Company achieved growth by improving raw material supply and
increasing selling price. Export turnover increased 26% year on year to reach USD
378 million. Pangasius, collagen and gelatin were major growth contributors.
Value-added product development faced headwind due to high raw material prices,
however the Company continued to promote its grilled and marinated products
leading to Woolworths, an Australian supermarket, sourcing four breaded products
from the Company.

Year 2014 (D 232 Million USD

vear 2015 (D 250 Million USD

vear 2016 (D 272 Million USD

vear 2017 D 299 Million USD

vear 2018 (N 378 Million USD

Breakdown of sxport value in 2018

e « Seafood: 344 Million USD | 97%

‘ ¢ Fishmeal and fish oil: 23 Million USD | |
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The Company exported pangasius products to 35 countries. U.S. contribution
increased to 68% in 2018 from 60% in 2017, recovering from logistics bottleneck
because of the initial implementation of the Farmed Bill inspection program. China
accounted for 11% and Europe accounted for 6%, Market dynamics impeded Europe
market expansion in 2018, but early signals point to recovery in 2019, Spain showed
recovery as trading with Mercadona, the leading supermarket chain, commenced
after a period of weak trading as a result of fake news campaigns in 2017, Overall,
the Company's major growth was attributed to W.S., China, and Spain. The
Company has strong position in all major markets, namely U.S., Australia, U.K.
Belgium, Spain, Canada, and China.

Vinh Hoan's main export markets in 2018

_# Japan | 1,5%

Hongkang 1 1,5% e ‘ @ Others |B!-i.

Australia | A% =

Canada | 3% =

Europe | 6% e

Ching | 11% »

“---# .8, | 6B%
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PROFIT

The Company's profit increased significantly in 2018 because of higher prices and
margins, volume expansion, and lower unit cost due to economies of scale. Trading
recovered from Q2 2018 after Farm Bill equivalency announcement. A spike in
external raw material prices was partly offset by internal supply, supporting overall
profit margins. Loyal customer relationships, market leadership, and raw material
self-sufficiency were key success factors.

Vinh Hoan Cellagen recorded its first profitable year in 2018, Profits from feed
trading and by-products increased. Fish meal and oil expansion at Vinh Phuoc will
lead to increased capacity in 2019,

Gross profits of finished products (Billion VND) and Profit margin of

2018 2017 018 2016 2017 M: 2016 2007
Products By-products Merchandises
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INVENTORY

At the end of 2017, the inventory was considerably low due to the scarcity of raw
materials compared to previous years. Therefore, at the end of 2018, the Company
recorded the increase of inventory compared to 2017, However, consistent with
ordinary course of business and increased production capacity.

Uinit: VND
Inventory Attheendof 2018 At the end of 2017
Materials 58,590,782,377 107,274,920,181
Toaols and equipment 2,591,935,850 9,359 200,807
Work in progress 516,216,251,080 724 965,997 461
Finished products 918,022,718,264 401,746,053,734
Merchandises 6,301,185,373 7.004,022 918
Total 1,501,722,872,955 1,250,350,195,101

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

According to the Resolution of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on May 15,
2018, dividend payout ratio was 20% in cash. The Company had paid cash dividend
at 20% of the par value on December 20, 2018,

CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY

There was no change in owners'equity in 2018,
Total contributed capital by owners as of December 31, 2018 was 924,039,430,000 VND.
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2.3.1 FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONSOLIDATED, AUDITED)

Unit: WND million

INCOME STATEMENT

Targets FYZD18

Total revenue 9,406,877
Net revenue 9271329
Cost of goods sold 7,231,966
Eruss Frruﬂt 2,039,363
Eunaral and admlnlstrntlve EXpeEnses | 354011
Financial income 137003
Financial expenses 167,116

| Profit from affiliated companies 78,762
Met operating profit 1,733,990
Other Profit/Loss (46,428)
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 1,743,548
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and 1,899,850
amortization (EBITDA)

| Profit bafur& Ia: 1,687 662
Met profit ﬂi ter tax 1_442555
After-tax profit of the parent company 1,442,182
Average outstanding shares 92,403,943
Wlllf‘ll‘l-ll‘l - EPS (Unit: VND) 15,489
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FY2017T FY2016 FYZ2015 FY2014
8,172,376 7,369,982 6,527,521 6,300,115
8,151,497 7,303,546 493390 6,292,449
6,979,607 6,236,783 5,690.816 5469173
1171,889 1,066,764 802,575 823,275
410,702 381,056 370,120 406,786
58,396 86,739 166,250 238,198
88,525 92,877 210,038 64,704

0 0 0 D

731,058 679,569 388,667 589,984
(8,278 (7135) (1,999 (2.921)
794,222 740,579 423,510 625,501
993,068 887,417 567,872 746,332
722,781 672,433 386,668 5R7,062
604,574 565,438 320,833 462,913
604,706 566,737 322,558 439,152
92,301,883 92,318,614 92,403,943 91,371,686
8118 5,706 3,491 4,806
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BALANCE SHEET

Tarpeis FY2018

Current Assets 4140347
MNan-current Assets 2158165
Total Assets 6,298,612
 Current Liabilities 2,250,750
Non-current Liabilities 32,580
Total Liabilities 2,283,331
Owners' Equity 4,015,182
Minarity Interest 1]
= T;:l;t_al-liesuurces i 293512
Debt/Equity 0.57

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Targets FYz018

Profit before tax 1,687,562
) Operating profit before changes in working capital 1*951,;393
Changes in working capital (1,281,465)
© Net cash flows from operating activities 680,227
Net cash flows from investing activities (702,079)
Net cash flows from financing activities 19,940
| Met cas;h -fl;:ws uﬁﬁng Ii'le year :I,Qli]
Cash and cash Equiv;ient-s at the end of the year 33,...'-':11.2
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FY2017 FY2016 FYZ015 FYz014
3,004,111 2.748,388 2,847,044 1,118,826
2,038.479 1,702 485 1,508.919 1,373,139
5,042,590 4,450,873 4,356,963 4,491,964
1,670,509 1,517,030 1,818,697 2,533,902
429,465 540,730 448,937 71,304
2,099,973 2,057,759 2,267,634 2,605,206
2,942 533 2,387,041 2,076,958 1,869,914
83 6,073 12,372 16,844
5,042,590 4,450,873 4,356,963 4,491,964
0.7 0.86 1.09 1.39

FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FYy2014
az2.7a 672433 386,668 RB7 062
873,618 BB6,150 537,962 535,937
(426,155) 69,431 (392,429) (472,350)
447,863 955,581 145,534 63,587
(593,432) (464,947) 480,471 (1,097,413)
26,606 (621,961) (419,466) 1,049,374
(119,364} (131,327) 206,539 15,548
45,345 164,636 296,093 89,238
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin (%) 22.00%

Net Prafit Margin (%) (*) 15.56%
i Return on Assets {ROA) (*) 25.43%

Return on Equity {(ROE) (*) 41.46%

Sales Growth Rate (%) 13.74%

Net Profit After Tax Growth Rate (%) 138. dﬂr!-i

(*): After-tax profit of the parent company

ACTIVITY RATIOS

0.A -
I I I | I I I
a4 1018 209G H'ﬂ 2018 nu 2015 2078 ICNF oA
Days Inventory Gutstanding (days) Inventory Turnoves [thimes)
] 5 8.4
. 8.0

| I I I I EE Ej
I I I |
- ® ®  ® om wa= - W @ cawmc o om
7074 2075 2006 2077 I09A 2014 2015 2008 2017 ota

Days Payable Outstanding (days) Working Capital Turnaver (times)
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FY2017 FY2018 FY2015 FY2014

14,.38% 14.67% 12.36% 13.08%
142% 1.76% 4.97% 6.98%
12.74% 12.87% 1.29% 12.47%
22.69% 25.39% 16.35% 26.31%
11.61% 12.48% 3.19% 23.50%

6.70% 75,70% -26.55% 177.27%

04 I0Ms 2016 20T ToM0

Days Sales Outstanding {days)

6.4
I L

2074 2018 JI0NE 00T 0D

Fixed Assats Turnover (timag)

i
I ¥ 53 6.8 o

204 2015 2078 2097 4018

Recelvable Turnover {times)
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LIQUIDITY & SAFETY RATIOS

-

014 20148 2076 T 1078

interest Covernge Ratlo (timas)

MAIN FINANCIAL ITEMS

I_ -
0.a07
a1
1370
§ 300 0,528
E&7 G056
aFE
H i I
2074 20185 070 2007 2010 2014 2018 2018 2077 2018
Total Revenue (VND billion) Profit After Tax (WND billion)

{* Quve-oefif income from divesiment Jn Vink Hoan Feed | J5C
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1.7

014 206 Fag ] 2017 2010

Current Batio {Himes)

E.043
A4S g any ad I

HIH 2015 IEI‘I:E 2017 :rnlu

Total Axsats (VHD hillinnl

.08
1.0
LA
o.88
2014 20185 FOTE 2017 J07E
Quichk Ratio [times)
AR L
2.841
2. 387
T i I
014 2095 H'll- 2017 ?n!ll
Dwmners® Equity (VHD billion)
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2.3.2 FINANCIAL RESULTS IN 2018

Uinie: VWD Billian
Items FYZ018 FY2017 Change (%)
Total assets 6,299 5,043 25%
Mel revenue 8,271 8,151 14%
Operating profit 1734 731 137%
Other gains/{losses) (46) (8) 461%
MWet profit after tax 1,442 605 139%
Met ;-IIJ'I:IfEt after tax to the Company 1,442 605 138%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
Ratios FY2018 FY2017
1. Liquidity ratios
Current Ratio 1.84 1.BD
Current assets/Current Liabilities
Quick Ratio 1.22 1.08
(Current assets - Inventoryl/Current Liabilities
2. Leverage ratios
Total Debt/Total Assels 0.36 0.42
Debt/Equity 0.57 0.71
20
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3. Activity ratios
Inventory Turnover (times) 5.59 6.78
Cost of goods sold (VND bilfion) 7,232 6,980
Average Inventory (VND billion) 1,294 1,208
- Met reven ue,."'l’u-n;l assets_ B 1.47 . 1.62
4. Profitability ratios (**) - -
Net Profit After Tax/MNet Revenue 15.56% 7.42%
 Return on Equity (ROE) a1.46%  22.69%
Return on Assets (ROA) 25.43% 12.74%
Operating profit/Net Revenue 18.70% 8.97%
AMALYSIS OM ASSETS

Iin 2018, Vinh Hoan continued to maintain its proeduction capacity amidst a severe
shortage of raw materials. It successfully achieved its 2018 business plan with a
new record in net profit after tax exceeding the trillion YND benchmark.
Accordingly, all profitability ratios improved, while liquidity and liability ratios were
similar to the preceding year.

Total assets increased by 25% compared to 2017, mainly contributed by an increase
in fixed assets from new production investment projects. Details as follows:

Current assets

* Short-term investments as of year-end 2018 were deployed to maximize
financial income from idle cash.

* Short-term receivables as of year-end 2018 increased considerably due to:
- Sales and exports increased sharply in the final months of the year

= Receivables turnover to the U.S. market iz often slower than other markets due
to longer transportation and customs clearance process.

The receivables turnover was therefore lower than year-end 2017. This change was
reflected increasing sales contribution from the U.5. market.
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Items FYzois FY2017 Change (%)
Receivable Turnover (times) 5.57 6.57 1.01)
Net revenue (VIND billion) 8271 8,151 13.7%
Average receivables (VND billion) 1.666 1.240 34.3%
Days of sales outstanding (days) 65.6 6.5 10.1
inventor

At the end of 2017, due to the shortage of raw materials, the Company saw a sharp
reduction in inventory far below normal level. As such, at the end of 2018, the
inventory balance increased versus 2017 but it was within normal range considering
the normal raw materials condition and was consistent with the increase in sales
capacity.

As at year-end 2018, raw materials supply recovered substantially from the severe
shortage as at year-end 2017, A higher inventory level is consistent also with our
increased sales capacity.

items FYZ018 FYZ2017 Change (%)
Inventary Turnover (times) 558 5.78 (0.19)
Cost of goods sold (VND billion) 7,232 6,980 3.6%
Inventory (VND billion) 1,294 1,208 2.1%
Days Inventory Outstanding (days) 65.3 63.2 21
Non-current assets

Total non-current assets did not changed materially overall. In 2018, the Company
established the subsidiary Vinh Phuoc Food Co,, Ltd. to acquire an existing factory in
Chau Thanh district, Dong Thap province and divested assets of Vinh Hoan 2 Food
Co,, Ltd. Certain assets under Van Duc Tien Giang were reclassified as investmentsin
an associate due (o deconsolidation.

For years, Vinh Hoan has always maintained a strong financial position which is
reflected by its safe and stable liahilities ratios.
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Items FY2018 FY2017 Change (%)
Short-term debts (VND billion) 2,251 1,671 35%

- Short-term debts and borrowings (VND biilion) 1,269 1.008 26%
Long-term liabilities (VND billion) 33 429 -92%
Total liabilities (VND billion) 2,283 2,100 a%
Liabilities/Total assets 0.45 0.42 0.09
Financial leverage 1.57 1.7 (0.15)
(total assetsfowner' equity)

"Cost control to increase competitiveness” has and will always be the slogan of
Vinh Hoan in its business activities.

In 2018, the Company regularly carried out analysis and evaluation to eliminate
inefficiency and to maximize the use of its resources. It monitored operational
metrics and improved raw materials, energy, supplies and packaging processes to
maximize efficiency and production capacity. Through rigorous internal audit, the
Company also redesigned several operating processes in a more efficient manner
and issued an enterprise risk manual to identify and manage risks in a structured
Rrocess,

Expense ratios over revenue dropped significantly to B2% from FY2018 from 81% in
the preceding year.

Two notable factors:

= Cost of goods sold: in addition to higher selling prices, the Company exerted
every effort to manage costs, especially raw materials costs, in 2018, It increased
its effort to balance raw materials supplied by its own farms and externally.

= Selling expenses, general and administrative costs, and financial expenses:

absolute costs remain at the similar level reflecting the Company effort to control
costs, while selling prices increased.
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Items FY2018 FYZ0NT  Change ()
Cost of goods sold 78.00% B85.62% -7.62%
Selling expenses 2.27% 3.30% -1.04%
General and administrative expenses 1.55% 1.73% -0.18%
Net financial expenses 0.32% 0.37% -0.04%

# Costof goods sald
# Selling expenses

|
.......................... e Generaland | 1.55%
administrative expenses

TRy » Net financial | 0.32%
expenses

e iIncomo | |

FY2017

* Costof gnndt:n!d B5.62%

= Solling exponses |

......................... e Generaland | 1.73%
administrative expenses

TP -» Net financial | 0.37%
expenses

# Income |
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AQUACULTURE INNOVATION
IMPROVES QUALITY, SUSTAINABILITY
AND COST COMPETITIVENESS.

INNOVATION

COsT IMPROVES

coMpeTiTiveness | auauity | SUSTAINABILITY
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN 2018
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2.4.1 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN 2018

In 2018, the Company continued to implement its expansion plan
with a total capital expenditure of VND 715 billion of as part of its
three-year growth strategy (2018-2020) described below:

= TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN 2018 —

VND 715 BILLION

Construction of a 220-hectare |
Tan Hung |
district, Long An province. Thisis |
a new farming project with the
largest area. The Company has |
commenced on the farm's land
acquisition procedures since
2017, In 2018, the Company |
completed construction of the
nursery area on an area of |

farming area in

approximately 50 hectares.

Additional
. existing farms.

Expansion of our second
Thanh Binh, |
which allows the Company |
to ramp up its capacity to
200 tons of raw materials |

factory of

per day in 2013,

construction on

Acquiring two existing
farms with a total area of
nearly 70 hectares.

Renovation of Vinh
Hoan's warkshop Mo. 3

¢ and fishmeal, fish oil

factary.

Acquiring an  existing
factory in Chau Thanh
district, Dong Thap
province for the newly
established company Vinh
Phuoc. This is the third
production cluster of Vinh
Hoan with an area of nearly
17 hectares, suitable for
further expansion plans in
the future.
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2.4.2 SUBSIDIARIES

(“VINH HOAN Wi ¥ ‘F’-.E-r.
FOOD 2%) ey H-I _-,i:”}

Vinh Hoan's ownership ratio:

99.3%

------------------- Principal activities: -—rreernes

RICE MILLING AND EXPORTING

In October 2018, the Company has sold assets of Vinh
Hoan Food 2 to a foreign investor. Amidst the difficult
situation of the rice industry in recent years, this deal
marked a successful exit to avoid future losses arisen
from depreciation. In early 2019, the Company
completed company dissolution.
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VINH HOAN COLLAGEN
ONE MEMBER CO.,, LTD.

(“VINH HOAN
COLLAGEN”)

Vinh Hoan's ownership ratio;

100%

R Principal activities: -

EXTRACTION OF
COLLAGEN AND GELATIN
FROM PANGASIUS SKIN

Vinh Hoan Collagen's 2018 revenue
reached VND 283 billion, up B0% versus
2017, It continued to foster sales after
three years of products and market
development. The Company's collagen
and gelatin products have gradually
gained recognition for gquality and
stahle supplying  capacity to
pharmaceutical, cosmetic and
supplemental food manufacturers in
Europe, America, Japan, and Korea, The
company's efforts bore fruits in 2018
with record profits as we continue to
implement strategies to add value and
improve production system.
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THAMH BINH DONG THAP
OMNE MEMBER CO., LTD.

("THANH BINH")

Vinh Hoan's ownership ratio: -

100%

Principal activities:

PROCESSING OF
PANGASIUS PRODUCTS

Thanh Binh Dong Thap is a cluster of
pangasius processing workshops that
Winh Hoan acquired back in February
2017 as a move to expand its production
capacity. Subsequently, we ramped up
capacity which contributed to nearly
20% into the Company's total revenue
and record an after-tax profit of VND
180 billlon. In 2018, Thanh Binh
expanded its production scale to the
secand waorkshop, attracting
approximately 1,000 employees, and is
on track to increase capacity to 200
tons of raw material per day in 2019,
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VINH PHUOC FOQOD CO., LTD.

(“VINH PHUOC”)

Vinh Hoan's ownership ratio;

100%

Principal activities:

FARMING AND PROCESSING
OF PANGASIUS PRODUCTS

In August 2018, Vinh Hoan deplayed
YWD 300 billion to establish this
company o acquire certain factories
and farms with a convenient location
and labor availability, After Thanh Binh,
Vinh Phuoc is the next step to
increasing capacity to ensure the
targeted growth rate of 20% annually
for the period of 2019-2020. Vinh Phuoc
has approximately 17 hectares of
industrial space and a facility with a
capacity of 150 tons of raw materials
per day with additional space to
expand. In addition, Vinh Phuot has 2
farms with the total area of
approximately 0 hactares,
contributing internal raw material
supply as we expand processing
capacity. In 2018, Vinh Phuoc upgraded
and repaired the facility, stabilized
workforce, and attracted additional
employees, and was a major profit
contributor. Furthermore, Vinh Phuoc is
also constructing a fishmeal and fish oil
facility on its available land area to
maximize by-product value.
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2.9

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
AND CHANGES IN OWNERS’
EQUITY

2.5.1 SHARE INFORMATION (AS OF MARCH 22, 2019) 74

-
Total number of shares 92403943 shares
f Par value (VMND/share) 10,000 Vietnamese dong
Mumber of Treasury shares 0 share

i, ‘ Number of outstanding shares 82 403943 shares %

Number of non-transferable shares 36,720 shares %

restricted under the Employea Stock :

Ownership Program (ESOP)

Number of freely transferable shares 92,367,223 shares

[
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2.5.2 SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE (ACCORDING TO THE LIST OF
SHAREHOLDERS AS OF MARCH 22, 2019)

INETALT iG]

Ll | Misrsbt ot individual ineesio
ratio (%) sharehabfors |

Sharshelder Type

puntitutional :IHdI'I.IH:H.I.-

1 State sharsholders 0 0.00 0 o 0

2  Major shareholders 54,308,532 58.77 1" 10 1
- Vietnamese 39575142 42.83 1 0 1
- Foreign 14733390  15.04 10 10

3 Labor Union of 46,911 0.05 1 1
the Company
- Vietnamese 46,911 0.05 1 1 o
- Foreign

4 Treasury shares Li] 0.00 [i]

5 Preferred shareholders 0 0.00 0 _
(it any)

6 Othershareholders 38,048,500 4117 2,475 86 2,389
- Vietnamese 19381672 2097 2,338 33 2,305
- Foreign 18666828  20.20 137 53 84
TOTAL 92,403,943 100.00 2,487 97 2,390
inwhich: - Viethamese 58,003,725 6385 2,340 14 2,306

- Foreign 33400218 3615 147 63 B4

2.5.3 CHANGES IN OWNER'S EQUITY

In 2018, there was no change in owners' equity.

2.5.4 TREASURY SHARES TRANSACTIONS

In 2018, there was one selling transaction of Treasury shares.
Number of transacted Treasury shares: 102,060 shares

Mumber of remaining Treasury shares: O share

Transaction period: from November 29, 2018 to December 13, 2018,
Average transaction price: VND 101,712 per share
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INNOVATION IN TECHNOLOGY APPLICATIONS
TO CONTROL THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
FOR SUITABLE SOLUTIONS.

VINH HOAN

104



= N MOVAT IO

26

(ERERREREREERRERERERERERERREEREREREREEEEREEEEEREEE LRI PRI R TR TR R R S I S A R AR U R IR R R AR NN

ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL IMPACTS
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As a company operating in the field of aguaculture, Vinh Hoan understands the close
connection between future sustainable development and the natural environment.
Therefore, the Company always demonstrates the highest commitment to the
environment through strict contral of all production factors and compliance with
regulations on environmental protection and biodiversity conservation. In additian,
the human factor is also prioritized by Vinh Hoan through activities of caring and
supporting the lives of workers and local communities.,

2.6.1 MANAGE AND IMPROVE THE QUALITY OF RAW MATERIALS

Sources of raw materials are strictly controlled in all stages of farming and
production processes. In farming areas, documentation are prepared for individual
parent fish, fingerlings, and commercial fish on issues related to health, source of
feed, ingredients contributed to the feed in order to control safety, sustainability and
traceability. The management of raw materials also extends to animal welfare. Fish
must be farmed, transported and processed in humane conditions.

In addition, Vinh Hoan regularly conducts training courses on knowledge and skills,
and consults its suppliers in assessing the certification of aguaculture food safety.
Mare specificly, in 2018, Vinh Hoan organized two training courses on food safety for
farmers, guided farm owners on farming operation in accordance with safety
standards, and ensured environment protection and traceability practices. These
efforts resulted in more than 100% increase in the number of farming areas of farms
meeting requirements to exporting to the United States compared to those in 2017,

During the year 2018, Vinh Hoan continued to maintain and expand its certified
farming areas to become the largest Company with multiple sustainable certificates
on Pangasius aguaculture (ASC, BAP, GLOBALGAP) in the world.

By the end of 2018, certified farming areas accounted for 80% of the total areas in
operation of the Company, One of the Company’s goals is to have 100% raw materials
supplied from farms having at least one sustainable certificate by 2020.

105
VINH HOAN CORPORATION

A nral Nepart 24015



o INNOWAT RO B =

2.6.2 PRODUCT QUALITY MAMAGEMENT

Compliance with product quality management and traceability systems is a
prarequisite for the import markets, especially meeting distinctly high standards of
some large distribution systems in the world.

At the processing plant, Vinh Hoan has obtained the follewing certifications: ASC,
GLOBALGAP, BAP, BRC, IFS, HACCP, HALAL, 1S0 9001, IS0 22000, and IS0 17025. The
products are manufactured under the conditions that ensure microbiological
standards and absence of antibiotic residues, proper freezing temperature
according to the regulations so that the products will not be degraded throughout
production, transportation and storage. The control and management of processing
lines are strictly implemented and ready for any customar requirements or audits.
Vinh Hoan's consistent and proactive quality management lies in the control of
procedures and analysis of potential hazards, not just making sure products can be
cleared at the port of destination. The Company's products are identified to
consumers with ability to trace back to their farming pond upon any requests from
the buyers.

In addition, the improvement of skills for the Company staff is a big focus of the
Board of Management. In 2018, the Company has conducted an amount of internal
and extarnal training sessions on Good Practices of Production. Since then,
employees have strictly controlled the process of farrming and processing aguatic
products to produce high quality products which are good for the consumers, The
Company has welcomed many delegations of authority agencies and buyers and has
always met all criteria in production and products quality.

2.6.3 ENERGY SAVING INITIATIVES

Continuous innovation and differentiation is one of the core values of the Company.
Therefore, the Company constantly researches and applies new technologies,
continuously improving stages of farming and production processes to improve the
efficiency of energy resource use and labor productivity. In 2018, the Company made
improvements in production and saved 12% of electricity and 16% of water use
compared to 2017,
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2.6.4 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Company carried out many Research and Development activities,
especially the vaccination of pangasius in large scale.

On august 22, 2018, a signing ceremony marked a strategic cooperation between
¥inh Hoan Joint Stock Company and Pharmag Group for the application of vaccines
in pangasius on a8 commercial scale. With the application of this new technology, the
Company focuses on prevention rather than treatment of diseases. The goal is to not
use anftibiotics in farming and to improve the fish health, thereby increasing the
survival rate of commercial fish; a sustainable development with a focus on product
guality and environmental protection.
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VACCINATION HAS HAD A DIRECT EFFECT ON
ENHANCING PREVENTATIVE MANAGEMENT
AND CONTROL OF DISEASE IN JUVENILE OF
PANGASIUS IN ADDITION TO REDUCING SUCH
AS THE NEED FOR REACTIVE TREATMENTS
APPROVED ANIMAL HEALTH PRODUCTS,
CULLING OR DISINFECTION.
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2.6.5 COMPLY WITH REGULATIONS ON ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION AND
BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION

All processing factories of Vinh Hoan have oblained 150 14001, This certification
requires an effective environmental management system. Vinh Hoan has designed
and constructed its waste-water management systems to ensure meeting Grade A of
industry regulations and conform to IS0 as well as other international environmental
standards such as BAP and GLOBALGAP.

The company has all licenses in accordance with environmental regulations. All
farming areas and processing plants have established strict waste-water treatment
procedure and quality control in accordance with industry regulations. In addition,
the Company ensures transparency through full assessment of environmental
impacts done by an independent third party and take actions to prevent and/or
minimize environmental impacts from production activities.

Currently, Vinh Hoan has approximately 600 hectares of farms. The Company has
planned farming areas from the beginning with a focus aon
environment-friendliness. Therefore, all of Vinh Hoan farming areas have
waste-water and mud treatment ponds to ensure no harm to the environment.

in addition, operations of farming areas and processing plants must not affect
biodiversity of the surrounding ecosystems. Specifically, farmed fish must not
escape and threaten the survival of other aquatic species; there must be no harmful
impart to wild animals on the list of conservation or impartant plants in the region.
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2.6.6 POLICIES RELATED TO EMPLOYEES

To build, maintain and develop a professional workforce, Vinh Hoan focuses on

implamenting some policies as follows:

= Management of labor and compensation: Reviewed functions and responsibilities
of departments within the Group and its subsidiaries and standardized every job
description.

= Completed and promoted regulations to support working conditions in order to
improve employes benafits,

= The Personnel & Compensation Subcommitiee periodically reviewed, updated
and/or adjusted rules, regulations, and procedures for wages, recruitment, training,
etc. in accordance with actual conditions.

2.6.7 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND AVERAGE SALARY

= Vinh Hoan Group: approximately 7000 direct and indirect employees (not
including employees at associated companies).

= The average salary in 2018 increased by approximately 10% compared to 2017,

2.6.8 LABOR POLICY TO ENSURE EMPLOYEES' HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE

To ensure the health of employees in the long term, Vinh Hoan always strictly
complies with the provisions of the Law on labor safety and health through the
following approaches:

= Developed and implemented a health and safety management system in
accordance with relevant Laws.

Established the Committee of Health and Safety with more than 50 members to
promptly update and fully disseminate rules and regulations on labor safety and
security to employees before joining the production line.

100% of Staff and Employees are equipped with protection gears, covered with full
medical insurance and annual health checks to minimize the risks as well as to
detect the diseases and ensure prompt treatment.

Anually, the Company arganizes labor safety training for all Staff and Employees in
general and production staff and weorkers in particular on first aid, labor safety,
chemical safety, electrical safety, fire safety, atc.

Office and factory workplaces always ensure proper ventilation and adequate
lighting, properly contral factors such as dust, noise, humidity, etc which are
measured periodically by outside agencies to avoid harm to the environment and
health of warkers.

Establish a fully-equipped medical room and 2424 on-duty medical staff to
promptly provide first aids and handle emergency situations as well as health care
for Staff and Employees. Each department has amedical box full of medical
equipment as specified by the Ministry of Health,
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2.6.9 TRAINING ACTIVITIES FOR WORKERS

In order to have high-quality human resources, Vinh Hoan advocates for the
training of the management personnel with expertise in food technology and
seafood processing to control product quality. Therefore, the Company annually
recruites candidates with high gualifications and skill sets to supplement the
management parsonnel.

Conducted candidates screening, interviews, assessments, and selections that
meet the recruitment requirements in accordance with the hiring process.

Fully implemented training and coaching plan such as management skilis
workshops for middle managers, soft skills workshops on human resources
management, eftc, to ensure enough human resources for a sustainable and
successive future of the Company

2.6.10 CONTINUOUS LEARNING AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS TO

ENSURE EMPLOYMENT AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT

Training and development program: planned the successive personnel to inherit
key pasitions of high and middie management levels as well as indirect and direct
production staff.

Completed personal development plan and organized training activities.

Ability assessment: standardized and applied ability assessment from staff o
management level,

2.6.11 WELFARE POLICY FOR EMPLOYEES

Vinh Hoan joined with Dong Thap Labor Union to take care of workers by
distributing milk to 30 members of the Company Unian.

The Company continued to support the Union Shelter program by building houses
for 5 members of the Company Union who had poor living conditions so they do not
worry and and can focus at work,

The Company supported employees who had poor living conditions from its Grants
for the Poor, gave monetary supports to 5 members with illness and offered
support for education through its Scholarship Fund with a total value of nearly VND
200 million,

The Company continued the Vinh Hoan Shelter program to build a house for
aworker at the factory at the cost of VND 75 million.

The Company organized the Gratitude-for-Parents ceremony for the parents of
employees with a total cost of nearly VND 1 billion.

The Company awarded 500 children of the employees who have excellent
academic performances.

The Company organized company trips to destinations within and outside of
Vietnam for the employees with a total cost of nearly VND 8 billion.
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2.6.12 REPORT RELATED TO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE LOCAL COMMUNITY

Beside strengthening its production and business, Vinh Hoan also organized various
activities to care and show gratitudes to the local community. In 2018, Vinh Hoan
carried out these major activities:

= Collabroated with Dong Thap Association for the Disabled, Orphans and the Il to
arganzie following programs with a total budget of YND 1 billion:
= Donated 3,000 Health Insurance coverage to the poor households in Dong Thap
pravince with a total budget of over VND 200 million to help them overcome
ilinesses and improve their guality of lives and standard of living..
- Cooperated with Cho Ray Hospital to sponsor heart surgeries for poor patients in
Dong Thap province with a total cost of nearly VND 500 million.
- Donatedwheelchairs, toy cars bicycles to the disabled, poor kids and poor
students with academic excellence (25 bicycles, 60 wheelchairs and 50 toy cars).

» Partnered with doctors from Ho Chi Minh city to carry out the Lights of Dream
program with 1,000 eyes surgeries with a budget of over VND 500 million.

* Sponsored the Spring Festival of Dong Thap Province on Lunar New Year with VND
500 million to decorate Cao Lanh City and brought joy and happiness to the local
people during the biggest celebration of the year.

* Partnered with Dong Thap Association for Promoting Education to award
scholarships to excellent students who overcame poor living conditions with a
total value of more than YND 200 million.

* |n addition, Vinh Hoan also donated free rice to the poor and carried out many ather
community activities.

Representatives of Vinh Hoan offering (nsurance cards to less fortunate Individuals In Dong Thap
province
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Representatives of Vinh Hoan offeting gifts ta patients from its Cardio Surgedy Spansarship Program
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“Anh sang voc ma® Program
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Representatives of Vinh Hoanoffering wheelchairs at Dong Thap province
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Aepresentatives of Vinh Moan offering gifis to students with good academic performances
in 2017-2078
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VINH HOAN

Parent Festival

Company trip ta Thailang
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According to the Global Aguaculture Alliance (GAA), aguaculture
innovation include:

Technologies that mitigate the occurrence of animal
diseases or parasites, or that reduce or eliminate the use
of antibiotics to treat animals:

Technologies that improve production efficiencies at the
hatchery or farm levels while mitigating environmental
impact;

Advances in offshore or land-based recirculation technology;
Novel feed ingredients;

Reductions in carbon footprint through improved energy
efficiency or regeneration; and

Social programs designed to improve living and working
conditions at the farm or processing levels.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4.1 The Eoard of threctors

3.2 The Supervisory Board

3.3 Report on transaclions, benaflits, compansation of the Boards
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1.1 ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2018

THE BOD CONVENED THE FOLLOWING FORMAL MEETINGS IN 2018 AS FOLLOWS

i e
Truong Thi Le Khanh Chairwaman O8/o8 100%
NguyenNgoViTam  BoDMember 08/08 100%
Truong Tuyet Hoa BoD Member 0B/08 100%
Mguyen Thi Kim Dac BaD Member 08/08 100%
Vo Phu Duc BoD Member 08/08 100%

In addition to guarterly meetings, the Board held additional meetings, telephone
conversations, and e-mail communication when deemed appropriate to discuss
corporate governance matters and strategic decisions, including:

= Quarterly and annual business plan;

= Monitor and supervise the strategy implementation of BoM;
= Review sales production, and farming reports;

= Recruit senior managers and appoint managerial positions;

* Review and approve investment plans, capital raising plan, acquisition and
disposal of major assets, and expansion plans;
= Review and resolve matters raised in reparts of the Supervisory Board.
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RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOD IN 2018

= Resolution dated February 09, 2018, regarding the charter capital increase in a
subsidiary;

= Resolution dated February 10, 2018, regarding adjustment of foreign investment in
Octogone Holdings Pte Ltd.;

= Resolution dated March 02, 2018, regarding the payment of 2017 cash dividend:
= Resolution dated July 20, 2018, regarding capital transfer at Vinh Hoan Food Co., Ltd.;

= Resolution dated August 29, 2018, regarding capital contribution into Vinh Phuoc Food
Ca., Ltd.;

= Resolution dated September 05, 2018, regarding the approval of Treasury shares
selling scheme;

= Resolution dated November 23, 2018, regarding advance payment of 2018 dividend.

3.1.2 ACTIVITIES OF SUB-COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SUB-COMMITTEE OF HUMAN RESOURCES — POLICY — COMPENSATION

In 2018, the sub-committee of Human Resources - Policies - Compensation:

= Proposed and advised to the Board of Directors on the policy of senior staffing,
including members of the BoM and the planning of management rotation for
subsidiaries in the group.

= Supported in proposing Key Performance Indicators {"KPIs") to the General Director
and the Board of Directors of the Company.

SUB-COMMITTEE OF PROCUREMENT

In 2018, the sub-committee of Procurement:

= Supported the Purchasing Department and Quality Control department in the
evaluation process of packaging suppliers;

= Advised on the selection process of suppliers;

= Approved raw material purchases;

= Proposed policies on raw material prices and feed prices to submit to the BoD.
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THE SU PERVISORY BOARD

Activities of Supervisory Board in 2018 and 2019 action plan

3.2.1 ACTIVITIES OF SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2018

IN 2018, THE SUPERVISORY BOARD CONVENED THE FOLLOWING OFFICIAL MEETINGS

Date of
commencemant
I no longer a
ab mamber [*)

Attended
meetings

Participant
rate (M)

Title

A rnun) Heporf F0OTH s

Mr.Nguyen  HeadofSB  12/05/2018 1/6 33% M. Thanh resigned
NgocThanh  (resigned) from the S8 on
12/05/2018
Ms. PhanThi  Member 12/05/2018 16 33% M5, Oanh resigned
Kieu Qanh of SB from the SB on
12/05/2018
Ms. Nguyen  HeadofSB  12/05/2018 5/6 83% Ms. Van was.
ThiCamVan  (newly elected into the S8
appointed) by the Annual
Meeting 2018
on 12/05/2018
Ms. Nguyen  Member DB/05/2015 6/6 100%
Thi Thai Ly of 5B
Mr.Nguyen  Member 12f05/2018 a/6 67% M. Vinh was
QuangVinh  of SB elected into the SB
' by the Annual
Shareholders
Meeting 2018 on
12/05/2018
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3.2.2 SUPERVISION ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ON
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

= Supervised the activities of the BoD, the management and administration of
production and business activities of the BoM according to the Enterprise Law and
the Company Charter; supervised the implementation of resolutions of the AGM;

« Attended the BoD's meetings, checked internal documents issued by the BoD and
BoM in the course of managing the Group to make sure the formulation of
strategies and guidelines is in accordance with the law and resolutions of the AGM;

» Checked the rationality, legality, honesty, and the level of prudence in organizing
accounting, statistics, and financial reporting activities:

* Planned and directed the activities of the internal audit department;

= Reviewed internal control procedures of key departments, and proposed solutions
to identified shortcomings {if any);

= Reviewed the systematism, consistency, and appropriateness of the accounting
gperation and preparation of financial statements at the Company;

* Reviewed any issues raised in the independent audited report and reviewed the
interim and annual financial statements;

= The 5B worked closely and regularly with the BoD and BoM and other managers in
supervising and improving the efficiency of activities at the Company;

» The 5B assessed that the BoD and BoM had expedited its management and
supervision in an efficient and prudent method according to the strategies and
objectives set forth by the AGM as well as in compliance with relevant provisions of
the Law.

3.2.3 OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2018

= Reviewed the controls of the procurement process and corrected any shortcoming;

= Reviewed the controls of the sales and payment process and corrected any shortcoming;
* Reviewed the controls of the production process and corrected any shortcoming;

* Participated in observation of inventory verification:

» Advised the BoD on the criteria for selecting independent auditors; infarmed the BaD of

the procedures to submit to the AGM for consideration and approval of the independent
auditors for the fiscal year 2019 at the upcoming Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

3.2.4 2019 ACTION PLAN

» Perform the inspection and supervision work pursuant to the functions and directions
stipulated in the Enterprise Law and Decree No, 05/2019/ND-CP on internal audit;

* Focus on inspections and controis related to Company's operational, financial and
imvestmeant activities:

» Supervise the BoD, BoM on implementing the 2019 AGM resolutions;

= Focus on controlling material risks identified in 2018;

= Periodically review the compliance and effectiveness of the internal processes;
= Internal training;

» Other activities as requested by sharehalders.
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3.3

REPORT ON INTERNAL PERSONS’
SHARE TRANSACTIONS

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll i o e e o ol ol o

3.3.1 REPORT ON INTERNAL PERSONS' SHARE TRANSACTIONS

In 2018, the following transactions of internal persons occurred:

Related person
Transaction Institution/

type individual Name

Sell Truong Tuyet Hoa BoD Member cum
Sales Director

Sell Truong Tuyet Phuong Truong BoD Member cum
Tuyet Hoa Sales Director

Sell Le Thi Dieu Thi Quality Director

Sell Hao Thanh Hue Production Director

{*] The post-transaction shareholding percentage is calculated as the number of shares held affer
the completion of the transaction over the total number of cutstanding shares at the completion
date af the transaction,
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NHumber of shares

Transactian Post transaction

Disclosure shareholding
Date percentage

Before %)
trading 3
21,907 19,000 2 907 05/04/2018 0.003
38,026 34,020 4,006 15/03/2018 0.004

18,184 8,000 9,184 07/11/2018 0.010
83,727 14,000 39,727 13/10/2018 0.043
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

4.1 Corparate nfarmation
4.2 Statemant by the Board of Managaement

4.3 Independant auditor's repon

4.8 Consalidated halance sheet (Form B 01 - ON/HM)

a5 onsalidaten mcome statamant (Form B OF - DNSHMN]

4.6 Consohidatiad cashn Nowstatement (Form B G2 - DN/HN]

4.7 Notes 1o the consoligated financial statements (Foom 8 09 - DMHMN)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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4.1.1 ENTERPRISE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

Enterprise code No. 1400112623 dated 17 April 2007 which was initially issued by the
Cepartment of Planning and Investment of Dong Thap Province and the latest
amended Enterprise registration certificate dated 29 December 2016,

4.7.2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mrs, Truong ThiLe Khanh  Chairwoman
Mrs. Nguyen Ngo Vi Tam Member
Mr. Vo Phu Duc Member
Mrs. Truong Tuyet Hoa Member
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Kim Dao  Member

4.1.3 BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Cam Van  Head (appointed on 12 May 2018)
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thanh Head (resigned on 12 May 2018)
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thai Ly Member

Mr. Nguyen Quang Vinh Member{appointed on 12 May 2018)
Ms. Phan Thi Kigu Danh Member (resigned on 12 May 2018)

4.1.4 BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mrs. Nguyan Ngo Vi Tam General Director
Mr. Huynh Duc Trung Permanent Director
Mrs. Truong Tuyet Hoa Director - Sales
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Kim Dao  Director - Finance

Mrs. Ho Thanh Hue Directar - Production

Mrs. Dang Thi Thuong Director - Sustainable Development

Mrs. Le Thi Dieu Thi Director - Quality (appointed on 25 December 2017)
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4.1.5 LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
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Mrs. Truong Thi Le Khanh  Chairwoman

National Highway 30, Ward 11, Cao Lanh City, Dong Thap Province, Vietnam

PwC (Vietnam) Limited

1.6 REGISTERED OFFICE

4.1.7 AUDITOR

STATEM ENT BY
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

4.2.1 STATEMENT OF THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT OF
THE COMPANY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management of Vinh Hoan Corporation (“the Company”) is responsible
for preparing consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
{together referred to as "the Group®) which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and the resuits of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the Board of Management is required to;

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
= Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

= Prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.
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The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Group and which enable consolidated financial statements to be
prepared which comply with the basis of accounting set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Board of Management s also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

4.2.2 APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We hereby approve the accompanying consolidated financial statements as sel out on
pages 5 to 47 which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting Systern and applicable regulations on preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial statements,

TRUONG THI LE KHANH
Chairwoman

Dong Thap Province, SR Vietnam
26 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF VINH HOAN CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vinh
Hoan Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“the Group”) which were prepared on 31 December 2018 and approved by the Board
of Management on 26 March 2019. The consolidated financial statements comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements including significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 47,

4.3.1 THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consclidated financial statements in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and applicable regulations on the preparation and presentation
of consolidated financial statements and for such internal control which the Board
of Management determines is necessary (o enable the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4.3.2 AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards reguire that we comply with
ethical standards and requirements and plan and perfarm the audit in order to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the conselidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including an assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal

i3
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control relevant to the Group’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. An audit alsa includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

4.3.3 AUDITOR'S OPINION

In our opinien, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System

and applicable regulations on the preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements.

4.3.4 OTHER MATTER

The independent auditor’s report is prepared in Vietnamese and English. Should
there be any conflict between the Vietnamese and English copies, the Vietnamese
copy shall take precedence.

For and on behalf of PwC (Vietnam) Limited

MAI VIET HUNG TRAN TRIEU NGUYEN DUY

Audit Practising Licence No. Audit Practising Licence No
0048-2018-006-1 3022-2019-006-1 3022-2019-006-1
Autharised signatory

Report reference number: HCMB8037
Ho Chi Minh City, 26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Form B 01— DN/HN

m
120
123

1]
132
136
137

iC1
149

151

152
153

26

SRR

Investments held 1o maturity Gia)
Short-term trade accounts receivable 6
Short-term prepayments 1o suppliers 7
uthm. mwl;lﬂim rﬁmm | B8
Provision for doubtful debts — short term
m-in -]
Inventories

Provision for decline in value of inventories
Other current assets

Shart-term prepaid expenses

Value Acded Tax to be FEl:lﬂll;lEﬂ

Other taxes recelvable

LOMG-TERM ASSETS

Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets Miak
Histarical cost

Accumilated depreciation

As at 31 December

4,140,347,276,090  3,004,110,967,925
43241847762  45,344,991,423
43,241,847,762 45344,991,423
607.749,887,456  372,822,249,924
B607,749,887,456 372,822,249,924
2,000, 762,641,975 1,329416,952,2
1,923,826,653,16 1,211,807,864,033
§7710,280,128 BE,816,290,883
24064216893 32322844712
{3,837 508,762 (3,330,047 407)
1,385,654,133,209 1,202,370,830,996
1501722872955  1,250,350,195,101
(16,068 739,746 [47,979,364,105)
101,938,765,688 54,155,943,361
12,309,483 720 3404677 866
H‘E.EEIE..EBLQ‘EB 50,492135110
- 259,130,385
ZIBRIGAITNIE0 2008478534429
1563796625 1456379625
1,563,796, 625 1456,370,625
1,397,236,799,687 1,565,828,947,002
1110,184,958,800  1,408,291194,920
1958910020456  2,381,685407,368
lEﬂB,?EE,EIEiJEEE] {Eﬁaﬂd.maﬁm

133

VINH HOAN CORPORATION

= A nnuAsl Nepart 115 -



= INMNOWATIOM <

H_H s |

intangible fixed assets (k) 287,063,800,687 167,537,747.982
218 Hrﬂurlr:al cost 94120452518 175,40,071,886
-2-19- ﬁl:twnu!atad am‘tlsatlm IWEE;E-;H...EE‘H (17.903,323,904)
240 Long-term asset in progress 258,764,816,482 224,285,956,057
242  Construction in progress 12 258,754 216 482 224 285,956,057
250 Long-term investments 389,355001,033  1,207729,978
257  Investments in associates Sih) 367.040,651,955 =
783 Investments in other entities | 1414,429,978 1297729978
260  Other long-term asset M, 252,674,462  245,609,520,867
261  Long-term prepaid expenses 10 60,973,104, 568 126,982 179,560
262  Deferred Income tax assets 19 4,580,035714 3140,451514
269  Goodwill 13 45,590,534 160 113,486,289,793
300  LIABILITIES 2,283,330,774,315  2,099,973,450,522
310 Short-term liabilities 2,250,750,376 116 1670,508,724,200
311 Short-term trade accounts payable W 274386646870 233078917957
N2 Short-term advances from customers 11,434 BOT 754 B5 544 542 598
13 Taxand other payables to 1§ 257436065576 105933001781
the State Budget
34 Payable to employees 13rA7IN7TET 8072 835469
315 Short-term accrued expenses BE34139125 12,404108 112
319 Other short-term payahies 16 268,563,649 346 79124, 265,487
320 Short-term borrowings 17 1,269,447,005123 1,008,178,027.048
372  Bonus and welfare funds 20 36,171,854, 764 48172124848
330 Long-term liabilities 32,580,398,000  429,464,726,322
338  Long-term borrowings 7 - 402 300,000,000
341  Deferred income tax liabilities 19 14,895,000,000 19,946,145,322
342  Provision for long-term liabilities 18 7951048, 000 7:218,581,000
343 Fund for science and technology 9,734, 350,000 -
development
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400 OWNERS' EQUITY 4,015,181,680,964  2,942,616,051,832
410  Capital and reserves 4,015,181,680,964  2,942,616,051,832
411 Owners' capital 3, 72 924,039.430,000 924 039,430,000
drla  Crdinary shares with voling rights 824,030.430,000 muai-muuu
412  Share premium 22 223,774,789,500 216,409,744 645
415  Treasury shares 22 - (305,672, M45)
417 Foreign exchange differences 22 = (357557012}
421  Undistributed earnings 22 2,867,367 461,064 1,8046,456,932 995
421a  Undistributed post-tax profits 1600,9711,036, 752 12058853, 178,579
of prévious pears
421b  Post-tax profil of current year 1.257,455,524 312 505,563,754 016
428 Non-controliing interests 23 = 83213949
440 TOTAL RESOURCES 6,298,512,455,279  5,042,589,502,354

J [ { st
Y
.,—'f.-
-
Ha Thi Phuong Thuy Heng Nhung Truong Thi Le Khanh
Chief Accountant/Preparer Chairwaman

26 March 2019

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
giatemants.
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CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

Form B 02 — DN/HN

Year anded 31 Decembar

01 Revenue from sales of goods and 9.406,877,067192  BI7Z376,25217
rendering of services

02  Lessdeductions {135,547 982 698) 120,879,574 064}

10 Netrevenue from sales of goods and 8,271,329,084,494  8,151,496,678,107
rendering of services

11 Costof goods sold and (7,231,966110,890) (6,979,607,337.425)
services rendered

20  Gross profit from sales of goods and 2,039,362,973,604  1171,889,340,682
rendering of services

21 Financial income 137003001788 58,396,039.031

72  Financial expenses (167116 436,972 (B8 524 EBO.138)
- Inchuding: Interest axpenses {55, 985, 954, 528) {71440 532 223)

24 Profit sharing from investment 78,751 826,955
i usnn:?nt.u

25  Selling expenses (210,445,968,727) {269,403 201,556}

35 _Usosslandadministrstion wipanses (MEMSAMD (L5860

R o o] sy o I

31 Other income 3162 655021 11,521085610

32  Diher expenses (49,690,427 383) {18,788,793,921}

40  Netother expenses (46,427,772,362) (8,277,708,311)

B0  Met accounting profit before tax 1,887,662,124, 884 722,780,593,034

51 Business income tax [“BIT”) - current (252,063,378,043)  (109,555,628,124)
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BIT - deferred 33 6,599,729,522 |8,650,519,609)
60 Met profit after tax 1,442,008,476,363 604,574,446 1M
Attributible to:
61 Net profit after tax of the Parent Company 1,442,181,680,312 604,706,151,216
62 Mon-controlling interest 23 (83,213,049) (131,705,105)
70 Earnings per share 5 15,489 6,118
71 Diluted sarnings per share 25 15,489 6118
e
i h._'. i
hﬂ I_
. ..f’#.;.
HA THI PHUONG THUY HONG NHUNG TRUONG THI LE KHANH
Chief Accountant/Preparer Chairwoman

26 March 2019

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these consalidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{Indirect method)

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

01  Metaccounting profit before tax 1,687,562,124,884  722,780,593,934
Adjustments for:
02  Depreciation and amortisation M3 156307707548  198,846,054,060
03  Provisions 96,329,303,996 (96,363,730,572)
{I'.;l urnaﬂseﬂ foreign exchange lmaas ?,Hﬁ}:?ﬂ;ﬂm l.i,g?z,am,da.'i.
05 Profits from investing activities HE,H?-II,EM,H}H l,au,uﬁﬂ,ﬁ:ﬂ,ﬂlm
06 Interest expense 550850954578 71440932223
08  Operating profit before changes 1,961,692655,633 873617707470
in working capital
D8 Increase in receivabiles (1,293,522, 710,875) (176,142,829,257)
10 1Innanuu:|ur:m&h inventaories (652,644, 352,130 H.Eﬂi.ﬂﬂ.ﬁla
1M incraase/ldecrease)in plrsrlblu Bﬂiﬁiﬂiﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ" Hﬂﬂrﬂﬂ,ﬂlm
i 12 {Increasel/decreass in prepaid expenses (12,220,952 635 M,H:I:J,E:"E,-Bﬂ?
2 Interest paid 154 ?UﬂTﬂB.HEI (73,934,851,268)
15 BiTpaid - 87800115,214) mﬁﬂﬁqzﬁ.ﬁﬂﬁ
17 Other payments on operating activities (14,319,100,327) (40,918,089,578)
20 Netcashinflows from operating 680,227230,337  447,462,566,582
activities
138
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2
pr

23

24

5

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fived assets

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
and kang-term assets

Loans granted and term deposits placed
with banks

Collection of loans granted and term deposis
at banks

imvestments in other entities
Froceeds from divestment in other entities

Interest received

(714, 768,152175)
169,486131,314

(1,777 720,000,000}

1,542,792 362 468

(116,700,000}
£,085,194,315
72)159,720,4%6

Mot cash outflows from investing activities (702,079,443,662)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

31 Re-issuetreasury shares
33 Proceeds from borrowings
34 Repayments ol borrowings

36 Davidends paid

40 HMet cash inflows from financing activities

50 Metincrease in cash

80 Cash at beginning of year

61 Effect of foredgn exchange differences
70 Cash at end of year

10,380,718,000
4,932 839,245 502

4,553,508,419,884)

(363,381, 375,400}
19,940,168,218
(1,212,045107
45,344,951,423
(191,098,554)

43,241, 847762

o INBCVAT IO <

(242,641007176)
80,900,001

(600,007,058,602)

306,460,000,000

{182 088 674 534)
19,172, 808,000
15581123776
(593,431,899,545)

4,760,549,651,955
(#,734,043,719,334)
[288,2250)
26,605,632,71
(119,363,700,232)
163,635,864, 246
r28274089
a5343,991,423

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statemeants,

Major non-cash transactions during the year ended 31 December 2018 are presant-

ed in Note 36,

HA THI PHUONG THUY HONG NHUNG
Chief Accountant/Preparer

TRUOMNG THI LE KHANH
Chairwaman

26 March 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

4.7.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Vinh Hoan Corporation ("the Company”) is a joint stock company which was
transformed from Vinh Hean Co. Ltd. pursuant to Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 1400112623 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment
of Dong Thap Province on 17 April 2007,

The Company's shares were listed on Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange ("HDSE") on 24
December 2007 in accordance with Decision No, 179/QB-SGDHCM issued by the
HOSE.

The principal activities of the Company and subsidiaries (“the Group”) are:

* Growing domestic aquaculture; processing and preserving aquatic products and
products made from aguatic products; trading aquatic products, materials
serving the production and processing of aguatic products and processing of
agquatic feed; and

= Extracting and manufacturing of hydrolized colagen and gelatin for medicine,
cosmetics and food.

The narmal business cycle of the Group is within 12 months.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 4 subsidiaries and 2 associates (As at 31
December 2017, the Company had 5 direct subsidiaries and 1 indirect subsidiary).
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are presented below:
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Parcentage of

ownarihip and
Comppny Pringipal votlng rights

GETHTY petivities

Address of registered office |

ILIZ307E | 31122077

Vinh Phuoc Food  Manufacturing An Phu Hamilet, An Mhan
Co., Ltd and preserving Commune, Chau Thanh District,  100% -
aquatic products Dong Thap Pravince
Vinh Hoan 2 Foed  Trading food Tan An Hemplet, Binh Thanh 99. 3% 89.2%
Co,, Lid. Trung Cammune, Lap Vo Districe,
Dang Thap Province
Vinh Hoan Extracting and HWational Highway 30,
Collagen manufaciuring af Ward 11, Cao Lanh City, 1005 1008
Co,, Lid collagen and gelatin - Dong Thap Province
Thanh Binh Dong  Trading aquatic Thanh Binh industrial zone, 100% 100%
Thap Gne member  products Binh Thanh commung,
Co., Lig. Thanh Binh District,
Daong Thap province
Van Duc Trading aquatic Dong Hoa Hemplet,
Tien Giang products Song Thuan Communa, 35% 100%
Food Export Chau Thanh District,
Company Tien Glang Province
Oetogone Trading aguatic Mo.3 Raffles Place
Hoidings products and #06-01 Bharat Bullding, 25% 1005
Pte. Ltd, functional foods Singapore

4.7.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System
and applicable regulations on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
histarical cost conventian.

The accompanying caonsolidated financial statements are not intended to present
the financial position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than Vietnam. The accounting principles and practices utilised in

14
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Vietnam may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions
other than Vietnam,

The consolidated financial statements in Vietnamese language are the official
statutory financial statements of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements in English language have been transiated from the Vietnamese language
consolidated financial statements.

2) FISCAL YEAR

The Group's fiscal year is from 1 January to 31 December.

3] GURRENCY

The consolidated financial statements are measured and presented in Vietnamese
Dang (“VND").
Transactions arising in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at

the transaction dates, Fareign exchange differences arising from these transactions
are recognised as income or expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are respectively transiated at the buying and selling exchange rates at the
balance sheet date of the commercial bank where the Group regularly trades. Foreign
currencies deposited in bank at the balance sheet date are translated at the buying
exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group opens the foreign currency
accounts. Foreign exchange differences arising from these translations are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign operations

Assgets and liabilities of foreign operations are transiated into VND at the closing exchange
rates at date of the balance sheet. Income and expenses of the foreign operations are
transiated into VND at the average exchange rate of the accounting period.

The resulting foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign
operations are recorded under the item “Foreign exchange differences” of the owners'
aequity on the balance sheet.,

a) BASIS OF COMSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Company controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Company. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceazes.

WiNH HOA N CORPORATION
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The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acqguisition of
subsidiaries by the Group., The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. |dentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement,

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling transactions and interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests
("NCI") as transactions with parties external to the Group.

MNCI are measured at their propartionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interast in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as transactions with owners. The difference between the change
in the Group's share of net assets of the subsidiary and any consideration paid or
received is recarded directly in the undistributed earnings under equity.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairmeant loss.,

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behaif of the associate.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

LUinrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its associates
are aliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group

- =
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5) GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary or associate at
the date of acquisition in accordance with current accounting requirements.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as an asset and is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its estimated period of benefit but not exceeding 10
VEErs.

Goodwill on acquisitions of investments in associates is included in the carrying
amaount of the investments at the date of acquisition. The Group does not amortise
this goodwill.

On disposal of subsidiaries, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on the disposal.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
amaortisation less accumulated impairment losses. If there is evidence that the
impairment during the year is higher than the annual goodwill charge, the Group
records the impairment immediately in the accounting period.

&) CASH

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash at banks.

7) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are carried at the original invoice amount less an estimate made
for doubtful receivables based on a review by the Management of all outstanding
amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off when identified.

B) INNENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by the weighted average method and includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
présent location and condition. In the case of manufactured products, cost includes
all direct expenditure and production overheads based on narmal levels of operating
activity. Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the normal course of
business, less the astimated costs of completion and selling expeanses. Provision is
made, where necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventory items.
The Company applies the perpetual method for inventories.

Provision is made, where necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective
inventory items. The difference between the provision of this period and the
provision of the previous period are recognised as an increase or decrease of
operating expenses in the period.

W ENH HOW N CORPORAT DN
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) INVESTMENTS

Investments held to maturity
Investments held to maturity are investments which the Management has positive
intention and ability to hold until maturity.

Investments held to maturity include bank term deposits, loans held to maturity for
interest earnings and other held-to-maturity investments. Those investments are
accounted far at cost less provision.

Pravision for diminution in value of investments held to maturity is made when there
is evidence that part or the whole of the investment is uncollectible.

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted using the equity method when preparing
the consolidated financial statements (Note 2.4).

Investments in equity of other entities

Investments in equity of other entities are investments in equity instruments of
other entities without controlling rights or co-controlling rights, or without
significant influence over the investee. These investments are initially recorded at
cost. Provision for diminution in value of these investments is made when the
entities make losses, except when the loss was anticipated in their business plan
before the date of investment.

10) FIKED ASSETS

Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisatian.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the fixed assets,

Depreciation and amortisation

Fixed assels are depreciated and amortised using the straight-line method so as to
write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives or over the term of
the anterprise registration certificate if shorter. The estimated useful lives of each
asset class are as follows:

Plants and structures b—25 years
Machinery and equipment 3-—10years
Moter vehicles 4 -10 years
Office equipment 3-6 years
Computer software =5 years
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Land use rights with indefinite useful life are recorded at historical cost and are not
amortised.

Land use rights with definite useful life are amortised using the straight-line method
in accordance with the terms indicated in the land use right certificates.

Disposals

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised as income or expense in the consolidated
income statement.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, remtal or administrative
purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost. Cost includes
professional fees and, for gualifying assets, borrowing costs dealt with in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other fixed assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

17) LEASED ASSETS

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

12) PREPAID EXPEMSES

Prepaid expenses include short-term and long-term prepayments on the balance
sheel, Prepaid expanses are recorded at historical cost and allocated using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives.

13) PAYARLES

Classifications of payables are based on their nature as follows:
= Trade accounts payable are trade payables arising from purchase of goods and services,
= Other payables are non-trade payables and not related to purchase of goods and services,

Payables are classified into long-term and short-term payables on the balance sheat
based on remaining period from the balance sheet date to the maturity date.

1a) BORROWINGS

Borrowings inciude borrowings from banks.

Borrowings is classified into long-term and short-term based on remaining period from
the balance sheet date to the maturity date,

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the pericd of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement when incurred.
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1B} ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses include liabilities for goods and services received in the period but
not yet paid for due to pending invoices or insufficient records and documents.
Accrued expenses are recorded as expenses in the reporting period.

16) PROVISIOMS

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provision is not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation, If the time value of money is material, provision will be measured at the
present value using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as an interest expense,

17) FUND FOR SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT

Fund for science and technology development is appropriated for the purpose of
scientific and technological development activities. The fund is set up on the basis of
maximum 10% of profit before tax and charged to expenses when appropriated.

18) PROVISION FOR SEVERANCE ALLOWAMCES

In accordance with Vietnamese labour laws, employees of the Group who have
worked regularly for full 12 months or longer are entitled to a severance allowance.
The working period used for the calculation of severance allowance is the period
during which the employee actually works for the Group less the period during which
the employee participates in the unemployment insurance scheme in accordance
with the labour regulations and the working period for which the employes has
received severance allowance from the Group.

The severance allowance is accrued at the end of the reporting period on the basis
that each employee is entitled to half of an average monthly salary for each working
year. The average monthly salary used for calculating the severance allowance is the
employee's average salary for the year prior to the balance sheat date.

This allowance will be paid as a lump sum when the employees terminate their labour
contracts in accordance with current regulations.
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18) CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Contributed capital of the shareholders is recorded according to actual amount
contributed. Contributions from owners are recorded according to par value of the share.

Share premium is the difference between the par value and the issue price of shares; the
differenca betwean the repurchasa price and re-issuing price of treasury shares,
Treasury shares are shares issued by the Company and bought-back by itself, but these
are not cancelled and shall be re-issued in the period in accordance with the Law on
securities,

Undistributed earnings record the accumulated results after business income tax at the
reporting date.

20) APPROPRIATION OF HET PROFIT

Dividend

Net profit after business income tax could be distributed to shareholders after approval at
the Company‘s General Meeting, and after appropriation to other funds in accordance with
the Group's charter and Vietnamese regulations. Dividend of the Group is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated financial statements of the period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders at the General Meeting.

Bonus and welfare fund

Bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from the Group's net profit and subject to
shareholders' approval at the Group's General Meeting. This fund is set aside for the purpose
of rewarding, encouragement, increasing common benefits and improvement of the
employees’ welfare and is recognised as a liability item in the consolidated balance sheet.

21) REVERUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the income statement when all five (5)
following conditions are satisfied:

» The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

= The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold:

= The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* [t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

* The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Mo revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due or the possible return of goods.
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Revenue is recognised based on principle of “substance over form* and allocated to
each sales obligation. In case that the Group gives pramotional goods to customers
associated with customers’ purchase, the Group allocates total consideration
received for goods sold and promotional goods. Cost of promotional goods is
recognised as cost of sales in the income statement.

Revenue from rendering of service

Revenue fram rendering of services is recognised in the income statement when the

services are rendered, Revenue from rendering of services is only recognised when all

four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

» The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* |t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Company;

= The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be
measured reliably; and

» The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an earned basis.

Dividend income

Income from dividend is recognised when the Group has established the recelving right
from investees.

L) BALES DEDUCTIOND

Sales deductions include sales returns and allowances., Sales deductions incurred in the
same period of the related sales of products, goods and services are recorded as
deduction of revenue of that period.

Sales deductions for products, goods or services which are sold in the year but are
incurred after the balance sheet date but before the issuance of the financial statements
are recorded as deduction of revenue of the period.

£ 3) CUST OF GOOLDS SOLD AND SERVICES HENDERED

Cost of goods sold or cost of services provided are cost of finished goods, merchandises,
materials sold or services provided during the period, and recorded on the basis of
matching with revenue and on prudent concept.

24) FIHANCIAL EXPENSES

Finance expenses are expenses incurred in the year for financial activities mainly
including interest expense, provision for diminution in value of investments in other
entities, losses incurred when selling foreign currencies and losses from foreign
exchange differences.

149

ViNH HOAN CORPORATION
- Annusl Nepart 215 =



o INNOWAT ROM

150

Form B 09 — DN/HN

25) SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses represent expenses that are incurred in the process of selling
products, goods and providing services, which mainly comprise salary expenses of
sales staff, publicity and advertising expenses, storage, packaging, transportation
and other cash expenses.

28) GEMERAL AMD ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

General and administration expenses represent expenses for administrative
purposes which mainly include salary expenses and benefits of administrative staff,
expenses of office materials, tools and supplies, depreciation of fixed assets used
for administration and other cash expenses.

27) CURRENMT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Income taxes include all income taxes which are based on taxable profits including
profits generated from production and trading activities in other countries with
which the Socialist Republic of Vietnam has not signed any double taxation
agreement. Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax
expanse,

Current income tax is the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect
of the current year taxable profits at the current year tax rates. Current and deferred
tax should be recognised as an income or an expense and included in the profit or
loss of the period, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event
which is recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on tempaorary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arisas from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of occurrence affects neither the accounting
nor the taxable prafit or loss. Defarred income tax is determined at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the financial year whan the asset is realised ar the liability is
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred Income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

2B) RELATED PARTIES

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under commaon control with, the
Group, including holding companies, subsidiaries and associates are related parties
of the Group. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in
the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the
enterprise, key management personnel, including directors, close members of the
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family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also
constitute related parties.

In considering the related party refationship, the Group considers the substance of
the relationship not merely the legal form.

29) BEGMENT REPDRTING

A segment is 8 component which can be separated by the Group engaged in
providing products or services (business segment), or providing products or services
within @ particular econamic environment {geographical segment). Each segment is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. A
reportable segment is the Group’s geographical segment,

Segmant reporting s prepared and presented in accordance with accounting
policies applied to the preparation and presentation of the Group®s financial
statements in order to help users of consolidated financial statements to understand
and evaluate the situation the operations of the Group in a comprehensive way.

4.7.3 BUSINESS COMBINATION

a) Change in ownership in Van Due Tien Glang Food Export Company, from
subsidiary to associate

During the year, Van Duc Tien Giang Food Export Company ("Van Duc Tien Giang”)
increased its charter capital to VND&72,000,000 through capital mohbilization from
another investar. Following the capital contribution agreement, the Company's
ownership in the new charter capital has decreased from 100% to 35% from 28
February 2018, Since the Company's control of Van Duc Tien Giang has ceased, the
Company no longer consolidates ithe financial statements of Van Duc Tien Giang
from the date the control ceases.

b) Divestment in Octogone Holdings Pte., Ltd., from subsidiary to become associate

During the year, the Company transfered 525,000 shares of the Company in
Dctogone Holdings Pte., Ltd. ("Dctogone®) to another investor, decreasing its
ownership in Octogone from 100% to 25% from 28 February 2018, Since the
Company's control of Octogone has ceased, the Company no longer consolidates
the financial statements of Octogone from the date the control ceases.

c) Capital contribution to incorporate Vinh Phuoc Food Co., Ltd

During the year 2018, the Company made 100% capital contributed to incorporate
the Vinh Phuoc Food Co., Ltd whose charter capital is VND300 billion. Accordingly,
the financial statements of Vinh Phuoc Food Co., Ltd ("Vinh Phuoc) have Tully
been consoclidated from the incaorporation date (4 September 2018) of Vinh Phuoc.
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Asat 31.12.2018  As at 31.12.2077

VND VND
Cash on hand 127,879,395 186,753,377
Cash at banks 42913968367  44,158,238,046
Total 43,201,847,762  45,344,991,423

4.7.5 IHVESTMENTS

a) Investments held to maturity

As at 31.12.2018 As at 31.12.2017
Cost Book value Cost Book walua
VHD VHD VHD VHD
Term deposits BO7TA0 BB ASE GOTMA9.AR7456 372,822 240524 372,822 249,924

at banks

The term deposits represent bank deposits with maturity of more than three months
and less than one year and earn interest at the fixed interest rate in Vietnamese
Dong.

As at 31 December 2018, term deposits of YNDE3,140,000,000 at Bank for Investment
and Development of Vietnam (BIDV) — Dong Thap Branch were pledged to BIDV — Tien
Giang Branch as a security for a credit facility of VND300,000,000,000, which expires
on 31 August 2019 (Note 17).

As at 31 December 2018, term deposits of YND22,000,000,000 at BIDV — Dong Thap
Branch were pledged to BIDV — Tien Giang Branch as a security for a credit facility of
VND2Z22,000,000,000 of Thanh Binh Dong Thap One Member Company Limited, which
expires on 30 Janurary 2019,

b) Equity investments in other entities

#As at 31.72.2018 Asat 31.12.2017
Cost Proavision Cost Provision
VHD VHD VHD VHD
Van Duc Tien 386, BB 055,875 = = -
Giang (1)
Detogone (1) 1,060,606 080 - - -
Total 387,940,661,955 = - .
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(I} In accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors on 9 February 2018, the
Board of Directors approved the distribution of the undistributed earnings of Van Duc
Tien Giang to the Company, and to increase the charter capital of Van Duc Tien Giang
to VNDA72,639 960,000 under form of cash contribution by a new investor.
Accordingly, Van Duc Tien Giang has signed an agreement with a new investor on the
charter capital increase. Under this agreement, the new investor shall contribute
YNDSET 216,000,000 in cash and hold 65% ownership of the new charter capital from
28 February 2018 onwards. Correspondingly, the Company's ownership in Van Duc
Tien Giang decreases from 100% to 35%.

{ii} In accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors on 10 February 2018, the
Board of Directors transferred 525,501 shares of Octogone to a new investor.
Accordingly, the Company has signed an agreement with a new investor on the
transfer of the aforementioned shares, decreasing its ownership in Octogone from
100% to 25% from 28 February 2018 onwards.

Operational status of associates
Associates are operating in their normal course of business.
Fair Value

As at the reporting date of these consolidated financial statements, the Company
was not able to obtain sufficient information to determine the fair value of these
investments,

4.7.6 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at 31.12.2018 As at 31.12.2017

VHD VHD

Related parties (Note 37(by(i}) 20,400,075,501 444 881,264
Third parties 1,003,425 578,215 1,211,162,982,769
Total 1,923,825,653,716 1,211,607,864,033

(*) As at the date of those separate financial statements, customers accounting for
10% or more of total short-term trade account receivables balance include Coast
Beacon with the balance of VND1,451,342,974 536,

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, trade accounts receivable of
USD12,750,000 (equivalent to VND296,246,250,000 as translated using the exchange
rate as at 31 December 2018) was pledged to HSBC Bank (Vietnam) Ltd. as a security for
a credit facility of USD21,500,000.

As at 31 December 2018, trade accounts receivable of USD10,000,000 {equivalent to
VYND232,350,000,000 as translated using the exchange rate as at 31 December 2018)
was pledged to ANZ Bank (Vitenam) Limited (“ANZ") = Ho Chi Minh Branch for a credit
facility of USD14,000,000.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the balances of short-term trade
accounts receivable which were past due over 1 year, amounting to VND3 956,628,834
and VND3 878,215,208, respectively.
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4.7.7 SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

Related parties (Mote 37(b}ii})

Third parties
Total

As at 31.92.2018 As at 31.12.2007

VHND VND
46,122,408,100

57,710,280,128 42,693,882,783
§7.710,280,128 88,816,290,883

{*) As at the date of this consolidated financial statements, the suppliers accounting
for 10% or more of total short-term prepayments to suppliers include Boi Anh One
Member Limited with prepayment amount of VND31,559,401,547.

4.7.8 OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Term deposits interest receivables

Reiated parties (Mota 370G

Advances
Others
Total

As at 31.12.2018 As at 31.12.2017
VND VND

8,235,345 808 11,365,568,903
6,319,401,318 9,334,795,944
671,767 890 2,112,662 865
8,837,701,877 9,510,317,000
24,064,216,823 32,322,844,712

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there was no balance of other
receivables past due ar not past due but doubtful,

4.7.9 INVENTORIES

Haw materials

Tools and
supplies

Waork in progress

Finished goods
Merchandise
Total
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As at 31.12.2018 As st 31.12.2077

Cost Provision Cost Provision

VHD VND VHD VHD
56,690,782 388 - 107,274, 920181 -
2,591,935850 9,358,200,807 -
516,216,251,080 724985997461 -
¥8022,718264 (1MG068739746)  A0V746053734 (47979364105
6,301186,373 - 7004 022 918 -

1,501,722, 872,855 (116,068,739,746)

1.250,350,195,101 (47,979,364,105)
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As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, inventories amounting to
USD8, 750,000 (equivalent to VND203,306,250,000 as translated using the exchange
rate as at 31 December 2018) were pledged to HSBC Bank (Vietnam) Ltd. as a security

for a credit facility of USD21,500,000.

As at 31 December 2018, Inventaries amounting to USD4,000,000 (equivalent to
VNDS2 940,000,000 as translated using the exchange rate as at 31 December 2018)
were pledged to ANZ — Ho Chi Minh Branch for a credit facility of USD14,000,000.

Movements in the provision for decline in value of inventories during the year are as

follows:

2018

VHD
Beginning of year 478753641056
Increase 102,691,014,224
Reversal (7.601,638,583)
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries [27,000,000,000)
End of year 116,068,739,746

207
VND

110,947.966,5M

(62,968,602 466)

47,979,364,105

4.7.10 LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

As at 31922008

VHD
Compensation costs for land lease 18,044 B1B,725
Land rental 8 505 961397
Fishpond construction and reinfarcing fisheries 1.635,739,393
Profeszional fea 7407 596 557
Laveling expenses
Others 19,378,988,516
Total 80,973,704,588

As at 31.32.2017
VHD

18,435,681,225
26,338,617,134
52,649,514,785
3,030,266,668
4,772,678,845
23,755,420,903
128,982,179,560
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4.7.11 FIXED ASSETS

HISTORICAL COST o v
As at 1 January 2018 806,898,308,31 1,362,943,048 068
' New pun:haﬂ;s n&,ﬁ&éﬁsimq _ mé,zﬁ,ﬁaﬂ,ﬁm
Transfers from construction 84,981,068 582 36,793,062 667
in progress (Note 12)
Disposals {107,572,321,708) (122,347,182,745)
Other decreases (835,310,369) (6,794,209,800)
Decrease due todisposal of subsidiaries  (205,370029.316)  (296,200,948,022)
As at 31 December 2018 774,658,381,414 1122,666,809,589
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION VND VND
As at 1 January 2018 316,002,713,815 602,906,790,683
l:h_;_r_ge far the year EE,E?_Q,_E_-BL_*.?E_?? Eq,ﬂ‘z 1_51?59_._3‘.;_’-1
Disposals (49,634,979 ,444) 146,675,129,5665)
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries  (51,904,733,575) (88,253,309,867)
As at 31 December 2018 266,833,886,073 552,890,111,325
MNET BOOK VALUE VND VND
As at 1 January 2018 590,895,594,506 750,046,257,185
As at 31 December 2018 507,824,495,341 569,776,698,264
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VND VND VND VND

'53,?75,223.-,;.9; 15,595,#?3,5-?-'& 32.473,353..-9}}; mmm;m
9.040,641,453 1,361,090,876 . 255240,446,654
6.518,107,273 1,030,674,898 ; 131,322,913,420
{9,292,713,875) (295,340,727) = (239,507,559,055)
- - - (7,629,520,169)
1962183065 (8s3sU6sES (247333008  (562,200767762)
52,428,418,695 9,157,310,758 - 1,958,910,920,a56
VND VND VND VND
30,266,057128 7,250,700,266 16,877,945,356 973,394,207,048
6,153,655,212 1,753,030,608 638,682,062 145,748,013,033
(4.852666,043) {672,279,973) # ({101,839,055,025)
(1,333,210,102) (3,569,362,838) (17,516,627,418) (168,577,243,800)
24,233,836,195 4,768,088,063 - B848,725,921,656
VHD VHD VHD VHD
13,500,166,369 8,304,773,310 15505408550  1,408,291,199,920
28,194,582,500 4,389,222,695 = 1,110,184,998,800
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group's tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of
VYND 169,440,512,470 (31 December 2017: VND 714,605,482,101) were pledged to
banks as securities for borrowings granted to the Group (Note 17).

Cost of fully depreciated tangible fixed assets but still in use as at 31 December
2018 was VND 443,769,390,036 (31 December 2017: VND 412,517153,409).

HISTORICAL COST VND VHD VND
As at 1 January 2018 174,006,894 816 1434177070 1765,441,071,886
NE'HI;Jrchaﬂﬁ 183,068,793,905 11&3?.5.{15” 183,195,668,905
'IF;ElnsIurs from construction - 713,238,968 713,238,968
ir progress (Mobe 12)

Disposals (22,115,259 465] (22,115,259,465)
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries (42,837 996 796) (276,270,380 (43,14, 267,776)
As at 31 Decembar 2018 292,122,432,460 1,998,020,058 Ell.ﬂﬂm
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION VHND VHD VND
As at 1 January 2018 16,921,562,308 981,761,596 17,903,323,904
Charge for the year 312081770 169,444,738 3,280,256,508
Disposats {2,684 822 524) 12,684,822,524)
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiarkes (17,356,919 453) [75,186,804) (11,432,106,257)
As at 31 December 2018 6,000,632,101 1,066,019,530 7,066,651,631
NET BOOK VALUE VND VHD VND
As at 1 January 2018 167,085,332 508 452015474 157,537,747,982
As at 31 December 2018 286,121,800,359 832,000,528  287,053,800,887

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's land use rights with carrying value of VND
43 B67 778575 (31 December 2017: VND 52 338,844 539) were pledged to banks as
securities for borrowings granted to the Group (Nate 17).

Cost of fully amortised intangible fixed assets as at 31 December 2018 was VND
705,229,790 (31 December 2017: VND 2,742,769,597).
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4.7.12 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

As at 31.12.2018

VND

Expensas related to fishponds 114,810 090 343
Acquisition of fixed assets B3,005.376,229
House for employees 20,729.447831
Other construction in progress at Head office 13,040,429,061
Hall and garage 7,640,130,492
Water treatment system 7,332,484,092
Others 3,196,858,435
Total 258,754,816,482

As at 31.12.2017
VND

B163,085,440
133,366,403,190
29,665,486,286
25615,820127
18,662,295,009
8,922 865,955

224,285,856,057

Movements in the construction in progress during the year are as follows:

2018

VND

Beginning of year 224, 285,556,057
Increases 289,779,086191
Increases from acguisition of subsidiary =
Transfers to fixed assets (Note 11) (132,036,152,388)
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries (63,946,921,227)
Disposal (48,083,164 200}
Other decreases (11,243,987,951)
End of year 258,754,816,482

2017
VHND

176,729,928,029
195,630,612,510
4,625,526,700
(121,603,275,227)

(31,096,835,955}
224,285,956,067

4.7.13 GOODWILL

As at 31.12.2078

bt

Beginning of year 113, 486,889,793
Additions -
Allocation (7273438007}
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries {B60,622,917626)
End of year 45,590,534,160

As at 31.12.2017
s

71,645,266,286
56,988,167,700
(15,146,544,103)

113,486,889,793

159
VINH HOAN CORPORATION

= Annusl Heparg 2018 =



o INNOWATROMN

Form B 09 — DN/HN

4.7.94 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

As at 31.12.2078 Asat 31.92.2007

Value Able-to-pay Value Able-to-pay

VHD amount VHD amount

VHD VHD

Related parties 784,876,419 784, 876,419 35 776,874,100 35 776,874,100
{Mote 37(biivi

Third parties (*) 273,601,770,451 273600770451 197302043857 197302043857

Total 274,386,646,870 274,386,646870 233078917957 233,078,917957

(*) As at the date of this consolidated financial statements, suppliers accounting far
10% or more of total short-term trade accounts payable include Mr. Dinh Van Can
with payable amount of VND 37,611,975,720.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group did not have payables
balance that were past due.

4.715 TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Asat 31.12.2018 As at 31.12.2017
VND VND
Business income tax - current 247158 246,178 102667 575,504
Valued added tax = domestic sales 20,219 608 612,604,785
Persanal Income tax B,188.528 651 2647973412
Others 18,071,238 4,944,000
Total 257.438,085576 105,933,001,781
Movements in business income tax and personal income tax during the year are as
follows:
As at Payable Paid during Effects of As at
1.1.2018 during the year disposal of 31.12.2018
VHD the year VND  subsidiaries VHD
VHD VHD
Business W2 EEI5Ta584 252063370043  (GTB00NSZNM)  (BITL596235)  24TI5B246778
imcome tax

Value added fax — 612504785 28289284050 (26820560335) (13,000,000 207,218,509
Domestic sakes

Personal 2pATATIANT B 425 BB5 812 (12,644 905178 (280,425, 395) 8,168 548,651
meomE
Oihers 4 944 D00 338 559, 38 {325,432 0 = 18.0m238
Total 105833,00M781 99707232 (137E9,00,807) (W0,023,021,630) 257436065576
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4.7.16 OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES

Asat 31.12.2018 As at 31.12.2017

VND VND

Related parties (Note 37BN 193,245 580,963 11,593,323,359
The Trade Unlon (*) 28,753,988,040 27,753,988,040
Union fee 20,665,585,171 16,869,114 475
Dividend payable (Note 24) 329,605,650 179,712,750
FPayment on behalf & 9.115,680,218
Other payables 15,667,889,522 13,612, 446,645
Total 258,562,649,346 79,124,265,487

{*) This is the amount payable to the Trade Union in respect of the housing
construction project for the employees to which the Trade Union has advanced.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not have other
payables balances that were past due.

4.7.17 BORROWINGS

As at 31.12.2018 Asat 31.12.2017
Value Repayment Valua Repayment
VND capability VHD capability
VHD VHD
Shaort-term 1268447095123 1269447095123 1008178927948  1008,178,927948
Ioans {*)
Long-term - - 402,300,000,000  402,300,000,000
loans
Total 1,269,447,095,123 1,269447095123 1410478927948 1410,478,927.548

Movements of borrowings during the year are as follows:

Effects of

disposal of
Az at susidiaries and As at
112018 Increase becrease revaluation 3122008
VND VHD VHD VHD VHD

short-term  100B17B927948 4824476720005 (224515894407) (438577656.403) 1260447095123
loans (*)

Long-term
loans 4072, 300,000,000 83IG2E25ATT  (AWMIBL5I5ATT)  (75,300,00G,000) -

1410,478,927.948 4,532,839,245,502 14,559,808,419,884) (513,972658443) 1269847095123
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As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group did naot have any overdue
borrowing.

(*) Details of short-term loans are as follows:

018 2017
VHD VND
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Forelgn Trade of 387 766,927 245 487 312,059,440
Vietnam— Ha Chi Minh City Branch (i)
AMZ Bank (Vietnam) Limited — Ho Chi Minh City 320,728,673,762 158,106, 286,108
Branch (i)
HSBC Bank [Vietnam) Limited (iil) 300,380,000,000 317.291,366,421
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for investment and 260,671 494 116 =
Development of Vietnam ("BIDV") —Tien Giang
Province Branch (iv)
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for = 45,469 215079
industry and Trade — Dong Thap Branch {v)
Total 1,269,447,096,123 1,008,178,927,94
.'.

(iY The balance represents borrowings in VND and USD with applicable interest rates
being specified for each drawdown to finance the Company's working capital
requirements, The borrowings are secured by the land use rights and the assets
attached to the land including the Company’s factory workshops 1, 2 and 3 (Note 11).

{ii} The balance represents borrowings in YND with applicable interest rates being
specified for each drawdown to finance the Company's working capital
requirements. The borrowings are secured by trade accounts receivable (Mote 6) and
inventaries (Note 9),

(iii)The balance represents borrowings in USD with ANZ - Ho Chi Minh Branch with a
credit facility of USD 14,000,000, The applicable interest rates will be determined and
announced by the bank at each drawdown. The barrowings are secured by accounts
receivable (Note 6) and inventories (Note 9).

(iviThe balance represents borrowings in VND with applicable interest rates being
specified for each drawdown to finance the Company's working capital
requirements. The borrowings are secured by pledging the short-term deposits
and associated interest income BIDV - Dong Thap Branch, amounting to YND
63,140,000,000 (Mote 5(a)).

(v} The balance represents borrowings in YND with applicable interest rates being
specified for each drawdown to finance the Company's working capital
reguirements. The borrowings are secured by the land use rights and rights and fixed
assets at fish powder and fat-processing factory.

4.7.18 PROVISIONS FOR LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Pravision for long-term liabilities represents provision for severance allowance.
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4.7.19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The gross maovement in the deferred income tax without taking into consideration
the affsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

1) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

2018 207

VHD VHD

Beginning of year 340,457,614 6,969, 855 842

Consolidated income statement 1,548,584 300 (3,829,404 ,378)
credit/(charge] (Note 33)

End of year 4,689,035 74 3.140,451,514

Deferred income tax assets mainly come from provision for severance allowance.

2) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

2018 2017

VND VND

Beginning of year 19,946,145,322 15,125, 029,951

Consolidated income statement [5,061,145,322) 4 B21115,371
fcreditlfcharge (Mote 33)

End of year 14,895,000,000 19,946,145,322

Deferred income tax liabilities mainly come from provision for diminution in value
of investments in subsidiaries.

The Group uses tax rate of 15% in year 2018 (2017: 15%) for determining deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temparary differences can
be utilised.

The Group's tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income for a maximum period of no more than five consecutive years from the year
right after the year in which the loss was incurred. The actual amount of tax losses
that can be carried forward is subjected to review and approval of the tax
authorities and may be different from the figures presented. The estimated
amount of tax losses available for offset against the subsidiaries' future taxable
income are as follows:
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Year of tax loss Status of Loss Incurred Loss utilised Loss earried
tax authorities’ VND VND forward
review VHD

Year ended 31.12:.2013 Dutstanding 14,395,978 801 (639,291,580) 13,756,687221
Year ended 31.12.2014 Dutstanding 19.360,497434  (B,796,163,238) 10.564,334,196
Year ended 31,12.2015 Dutstanding 30,074.572.814 (10457237188) 19617335626
Year ended 31.12.2016 Outstanding 18.491,681,267 (11,742 585,857 6749095410
Year ended 31.12.2017 Outstanding 1B,737151198 (12141,824,963) 6595326245
Year ended 31,12.2018 Outstanding 4,396,642,865 - 4,396,642,865
The Group has not recognised deferred income tax assets refating to the above tax

losses carried forward, as the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits of these subsidiaries currently can not be assessed as probable,

4.7.20 BONUS AND WELFARE FUND

Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the year are as follows:

018 2017

VND VND
Baginning of year 48,172,124 Bag 49,090,214 526
Appropriated [Mote 22) 10,941,230,243 40,000,000,000
Utilised (14,053,450,327) (40,918,088,678)
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries (8,888 050,000) -
End of yoar 36,171,854,764 a48,172,124,848
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4.7.21 OWNERS' CAPITAL

a) Number of shares
2018
Ordinary Preference
shares shares
Mumber of shares registered 92,403,943 -
Mumber of shares issued a2 403,943 =
Mumber of shares repurchased = =+
Number of existing shares 92,403,943 -
in circulation
b} Movement of share capital
Humber Ordinary
of shares shares
VHD
A at 1 January 2017 and 92,403,943 ©924,039,430,000

a5 at 31 December 2018

Par value per share: YND 10,000.

207
Ordinary Preference
92,403,543 -
92,403,943 -
(102,080) -
62 301883 -
Preference Total
shares VHD
VHD

- 524,039,430,000
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4.7.22 MOVEMENTS IN OWNERS' EQUITY

Linit: vND

Asat 1 January 2007 924,039,430,000 216,409,744 645 (3,015,672,745)
Net profit for the year - - -

Profit appropriation = = =
to bonus and welfare
fund

Additional - - -
investments in a
subsidiary

Others - -

As at
31 December 2017 924,039,430,000 216,409,744,645 (3,015,672,745)

Met profit for the year - - -
Treasury shares - 7.365,045,255 3,015,672 745
re-issued (*)

2017 dividend - - -
declared [**)

2018 interim dividend - = Z
declared (***)

Profit appropriation = 5 =
to bonus and welfare
fund ‘##!-}

Others . a =

As at
31 December 2018 924,039,430,000  223,774,789,900 -
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(2B5,558,957) 1,249,893,178,979 6,072,521,854 2,393,113,643,776
. 604,706,151,216 (131,705,105) 604,574,446,111
- (40,000,000,000) . {40,000,000,000)
- {9,142,397,200) {5,B57,602,800) {15,000,000,000)
(72,038,055) - = (72,038,055)
(357,597,012) 1,805,456,932,995 83,213,949 2,942,616,051,832
- 1,442,181,690,312 (83,213,949) 1,442,098,476,363
- . - 10,380,718,000
. (184,603,766,000) . (184,603,766,000)
- (184,726,166,000) - (184,726,166,000)
- (10,941,230,243) - (10,941,230,243)
157,597,012 - - 357,597,012
- 2,867,367,461,064 - 4,015,181,680,964
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In accardance with the Resolution of the Board of the Management dated 19
Dctober 2018, the Company re-issued 102,606 treasury shares to supplemeant
working capital. The total transaction amount was VND 10,380,718,000 which
was completed on 13 December 2018.

In accordance with the Resclution of the Annual General Meeting of
shareholders No 01/DHCD/MQ/1B dated 12 May 2018, the shareholders
approved the 20% cash dividend payout (VND 2,000 par share), equivalent to
VND 184,603,766,000 from the 2017 undistributed earmings.

In accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors dated 23
November 2018, the Board of Directors approved the 20% cash dividend
payout (VND 2,000 per share), equivalent to VND 184,726,166,000 from the
2018 undistributed earnings.

In accordance with the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
shareholders dated 12 May 2018, the Group appropriated an amount of VND
10,941,230,243 from the year 2017's profit after tax to the bonus and welfare
fund in the year ended 31 December 2018.

4.7.23 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST ("NCI")

Details of NCI are as follows:

As at 31.12.2018 Asat 31.12.2017

VHND VHD
Share capital Iﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ;ﬂﬂﬂ :rnn,nauduﬁn
Allocated losses {700,000,000) (616,786,051
. 83,213,949

Movements of the NCI are as follows:
2018 2017
VHD VHND
Beginning of year 83,213,249 6,072,521,854
Allocated losses for the year (83,213,049) (131,705,105)
Decrease due o repurchase of share capital from NCI - (5,857 602,800)
End of year - 83213989
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4.7.24 DIVIDENDS

Movements of dividends payable during the year are as follows

2018 2017

VND VND

Beginning of year 179,712,750 180,012,000
Dividends payable (Note 22) 369,329,932,000 ;
Dividends pald in cash {369,220,123,400) {299,250}
Others 40,084,300 -
End of year (Note 16) 329,605,650 179,712,750

4.7.25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
shareholders after deducting the bonus and welfare fund by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares
repurchased by the Company and held as treasury shares:

For the year ended
31.32.2078 31.32.2017
Het profit attributable to shareholders (VND) 1,442 181,680,312 604,706,151,216
Less amount allecated to bonus and wellare (10,941,230, 243} (40,000,000 000}

funds (VND} (*)
1,431,240,460,069 564,706,151,216

Weighted average number of ardinary shares in 92,403,943 92,301,883
izsie (shares)

Basic earnings per share (VND) 15,489 6,118

(*) Amount allocated to the bonus and welfare fund in the year ended 31 December
2018 is in accordance with the 2017 profit distribution plan which was approved
by the Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, whereas the
amount allocated to the bonus and welfare fund in the year ended 31 Decamber
2017 is in accordance with the 2016 profit distribution plan which was approved
by the Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company did not have potential shares which diluted earning per shares.
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4.7.26 OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

a) Operating leases commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2016 are presented in

Note 38.
b) Foreign currencies

As at 31.12.2018 Asat 31.12.2017
United States Dollar ["USD") 1,255,473 360,314
Eura ("EUR™) 30& 55,899
Chiness Yuan Renminbi ("CNY") 3,308 3183477
Japanese Yen ["JPY"} . 31,983
Singapore Dollar (*SG0") . 575,555
2018 2017
VND VND

Sales
Sales of finished goods 7,385,724 314,301 6,273,044 408472
Sales of by-products 1,102,358,015,774 1,281,110,654 888
Sales of merchandises BE4,339,064 166 565,164,177, 544
Rendering of services 53,036,040,517 5,830,315,632
Sales of raw materials 21,418,632,434 47,215,468,362
Others - 1,227,273
Total 9,406,877,067,192 8,172,376,25211
Sales allowances (130,445,563 339) {1,290, 496,064)
Sales returns {5,102,419,359) {19,589,077,100)
Total (135,547,982,698) (20,879,574,084)
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4.7.2B COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Cost of finished goods sold
Cest of by-products sold
Cost of merchandises sold
Cost of raw materials sold
Cost of services provided

Provision/[reversal of provigion)
for dacling in value of Inventories

Others
Total

08 2017

VND VND
5,313,506,084,951 5,273,995 709,833
975,196,132,196 1,171,239,738,752
819,793,209,563 545,241,372,194
20,703,415,701 45 918,081,399
£,893,857,579 1,861,237,045

5, 089,375,641 (62,868,602 466)
784,035,219 4,319,790,668
7,231,966,110,890 5,979,607,337,425

4.7.29 FINANCIAL INCOME

Intergst income from deposits
Realised foreign exchange gains

Intefest income on the advances
for purchases of raw matarials

Dthers
Total

4.7.30 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

2018 2017

VND VHD
64,905,144,122 20,637,299,235
B4,633,682,907 26,069,492,947
4,124,353199 5,117,225,204
3,339,821,560 B,572,022,545
137,003,001,788 58,396,039,931

Interest expefise
Loss from disposal of subsidiarias (*)
Realised foreign exchange losses

Met loss fram foreign currency translation
at year-and

Others
Total

2018 2017
VND VMND
55,985,954,528 71,440,932,223
69,284 816,170 -
34,114,708,298 9,703,680,484
7530,202,267 6,972,390,435
200,665,700 407 685,996
ATIRAMMT  SRAASENIS

17

VINH HOAN CORPORATION

- Annual Neparg 2018 =



wo INNOWVATION =

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(*) Mainly comes from the write-off of the unallocated goodwill of Van Duc Tien
Giang at the date of disposal.

2018 2017

VND VND
Transportation, storage and ather 138,313163,818 170,507.697,479
outsourced service expenses
Exhitition and advertising expensas 18,675,453,164 37,023,216,602
Staff costs 10,150,139,834 13,062,694, 405
Dthers 43,307,201,811 48 809,593,070
Total 210,445,968,727 269,403,201,556

4.7.32 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

z018 2077

VHD VHD
Staft costs 50,251,394,825 55,171,285,129
Depreciation and amoartization 11,711,278,304 14,745 827361
of fixed assets
Allocation of goodwlll 7.273,438,007 15,146,544193
Tools and supplies 7179,708,197 7147448289
Dthers £7149,679,069 49,138,082,702
Total 143,565,499,402 141,299,187,674

4.7.33 BUSINESS INCOME TAX

In accordance with Circular No, 96/2016/TT-BTC dated 22 June 2016 issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the Company is subjected to business income tax (“BIT”) rate of 15% for aquaculture
processing activities and 20% for other activities,

Subsidiaries of the Company have the obligations to pay business income tax are as follows:

1) VINH HOAN COLLAGEN CO., LTD (“VINH HOAN COLLAGEN")

In accordance with Investment Certificate Mo. 51121000127 dated 14 March 2013
issued by the People's Committee of Dong Thap Province, Vinh Hoan Collagen is
subjected to the business income tax rate of 10% in 30 years from the first year
genrating revenue from incentive activities, and is exempt from business income tax
for 4 years from the first year making taxable profit from the project and entitled to a
50% reduction for 9 years thereafter,
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£) VINH HOAN 2 FOOD COMPANY LIMITED ("VINH HOAN 2")

In accordance with Investment Certificate No. 51121000117 dated 27 August 2012
issued by the People's Committee of Dong Thap Province, Vinh Hean 2 is subjected to
the business income tax rate of 20% in 10 years from the commencement date of
operation for drying, peeling rice, manufacturing parboiled rice and polishing rice for
export at, and is exempt from business income tax for 2 years from the first year
rmaking profit and entitled to a 50% reduction for 4 years theraafter.

3 THAMNH BINH DOMG THAP ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED (“"THANH BIMNH"™)

In accordance with Investment Certificate No. 7664856881 dated 28 February
2017 issued by the People's Committee of Dong Thap Province, Thanh Binh is
exempt from business income tax for 2 years from the first year making prafit and
entitled to 50% reduction for 4 years thereafter for the additional income in the
expansion project. Thanh Binh is subjected to Business income tax rate of 10% for
aquaculture processing activities and 20% for other activities.

The Group's other activities are subjected to business income tax rate of 20%.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the applicable tax rate as follows:

2018 2017
VHD YHD
Net accounting profit before tax 1,687,562,124,884 722,780,583,534
Tax calculated at a rate of 20% 337,512,424 977 140,634 620,146
Effect of:
Income not subject to tax (15, 750,365,391)
Hon-deductible expenses 4,091,583,704 3,100,881,283

Tax incentive (B1,B81,067,519) [34,187,421,417})

Tax losses tpt which no deferred income tax assat 879,328,573 3836952 440

was recognised

Utllisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (4,418,903 610)

Over-provision in previous years (20,497 535)

Others 5,051,145,327 482111537

Business income tax charge (*) 245,463,648,527 118,206,147,823

Charged to income statement:

Business Income tax — current 252,063.378,043 109,655 628,124

Business income tax —deferred (**) (6,599,729.622) B.650,619,699
245,463,648,51 118,206,147,823
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{*) The business income tax charge for the year is based on estimated taxable income
and is subject to review and possible adjustments by the tax autharities,

{**} Deferred income tax (income)/expenses incurred during the year are mainly as below:

2018 2017

i oo
Taxable temporary differences 14,825.000,000 19,946,145 322
Reversal of deferred income tax assets 2140451514 B965,850 842
Deductible tempaorary differences i4,689,035,714) (3,040,451,614)
Reversal of deferred income tax liabilities {19,946,145,322) {15,125,029,951)
Total deferred income tax (6,599,729,522) 8,650,519,699
(incomes)/expenses

2018 2077

VND VND
Raw materials 7.267652,647878 5,201, 19,167,107
Labour costs 760,221,527,228 777.963,491142
Depreciation, amartisation and 166,301,707 548 198,846,054, 060
allocation of goodwill
Qutsourced service EXpenses B38,417,277.239 480,919,663127
Other cash expenses 188,574,830,40 194,370,044 043
Total 8,211,167,990,384  6,923,318,420,379

4.7.35 SEGMENT REPORTING

1 GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT

The Group’s activities are mainly segmented by export and domestic activities. The
Group did not monitor its operation results, fixed assets, other non-current assets or
non-cash major expenses by the geographical areas of customers.

2018 2017

VND VND
Export sale 7,401,518,725,266 6,769,771,522,404
Domestic sale 1,8608,810,350,708 1,381,725,156,703
Net sales 9,271,329,084,494  B,151,496,678,107
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2] BUSIHESS ACTIVITY SEGMENT
Growing, processing and trading aquatic products are the main activities that
generate revenue and profit for the Group, while the other revenue streams only

account for a small portion of the Group's total revenue; therefore the Management
has determined that the Group has operated in only one business segment.

4.7.36 DDITHONAL INFORMATION FOR THE ITEMS OF THE STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

1) NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS AFFECT THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December

2018 2007

VHD VHD
Transfers fram construction in progress o 132,036,152, 388 121,603,275, 227
tangibie fixed assets
Purchase tangible fixed assets and 13,447.049575 -
construction in progress were nol yet paid
Capltalised interest expense during the year = 1.927178,000

Z2) AMDUNT OF LOAN ACTUALLY WITHDRAWN DURITNG THE YEAR

Year ended 31 December
2018 2017
VHD VHD
Proceads from borrowings following 4,932 839,245 502 4 760,640 651 965

normal borrawing contracts

A AMOUNT OF LOAN PRINCIPAL ACTUALLY PAID DURING THE YEAR

Year ended 31 December
2018 2077
VND VHND
Repayments for barrowings following 4 559 B98 419, BB4 4,734 043,719,934

normal borrowing contracts
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4.7.37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

1} RELATED PARTY THANSACTIONS

During the year, the following major transactions were carried out with related parties:

2018 207
VND VND
i} Sales of goods and rendering of services
Van Due Food Co., Lid. 76B84,258,097 3,948 011, 766
Yan Due Tlen Glang 49,664 919,821
Total 57,349,177.918 3,948,011,7686
ii) Purchases of goods and services
Van Duc Tien Glang 21,378,254,097
individuals 51,443 BB BOD 32,000,776,760
Total 72,822,143, 897 32,000,776,760
ili) Disposals of fixed assets
Van Duc Tien Giang 51,162,631,314 =
Van Duc Food Co, Ltd, = 90,909,091
Tatal 51,152,531,314 90,809,091
iv) Compensation of key management
Gross salaries and other benefits 29622163776 36,406,686160
Z) YEAR END BALAMCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
2018 2017
VHD VHD
i) Short-term trade accounts receivable (Note 6)
Van Duc Tien Giang 17.284, 228152 -
Van Due Food Ca., Ltd 3115, 846,349 d44 Ba1, 764
Total 20,400,075,501 444,881,264
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ii) Short-term prepayment to suppliers (Mote 7)
Individuals

iii) Other short-term receivables (Note 8)
Individuals

Van Duc Tien Giang

Octogons

Board of Directors and Management

Total

iv) Short-term trade accounts payable (Note 14)
Van Duc Tien Glang
Individuals

Total

v) Other short-term payables (Note 16)
Wan Duc Tien Giang

Van Duc Food Co., Ltd.

Total

94,038,000
6,000,000,000

225,362,318
6,219,407, 318

784,876,419

784,876,419

165,203,661,518
28,042,019,445

193,245,580,963

o INMOVATIION

Form B 09 — DN/HN

46,122, 408,100

7.829,060,000

1,505,235,944
9,334,295,944

36,776,874.100
35,776,874,700

165,203,561,518
28,043,019 445

193,245,580,963

4.7.38 OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

Within one year
Between one and five years
Dwver five years

Total minimum payments

4,723,752,054
18,895,008, 214
25,922, 371,221
49,541,131,489

2017
VHD

7192 660,070
28,770,640,282
53,718,529,281

89,181,829,633
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4.7.39 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's presentation.

4.7.40 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of Directors on 2 January 2019, the Board
approved the contribution of 45% of the charter capital, equivalent to VND
22,500,000,000, to establish Vinh Hoan Fish Hatchery Co,, Ltd., at Vinh Buong
Hamlet, Vinh Hoa Commune, Tan Chau Town, An Giang Province, whose main
activity is freshwater aguaculture.

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of Directors on 25 February 2019, the
Board approved the dissolution of Vinh Hoan 2 Food Co., Ltd. This dissolution
would be carried out within 180 days from the date of the dissolution decision.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Management
on 26 March 2019.

l_,-f”fﬁ

phet

-rﬂ.
HA THI PHUDONG THUY HONG NHUNG TRUONG THI LE KHANH
Chief Accountant/Preparer Chairwoman
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CONTACT US

HEADQUARTERS

National Road 30, Ward 11, Cao Lanh City, Dong Thap Province, Vietnam
Phone: +84 277 389 1166

Fax: +84 277 3891062

E-mall: info@vinhhoan.com

Website: www.vinhhoan.com

HO CHI MINH CITY BRANCH

8tN—10' Floor, TKT Building, 569-571-573 Tran Hung Dao Street, Cau Kho Ward,
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Phone: +84 283 836 4849
Fax: +84 283 836 5090
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